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MANAGEMENT ASSERTION LETTER
February 26, 2007

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Certified Public Accountants

3201 West White Oaks Drive, Suite 202
Springfictd, 1L 62704

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We arc responsible for the identification of, and compliance with, all aspects of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant
agreements that could have a material effect on the operations of the State of lllinois, Department of Corrections
(Department). We are responsible for and we have established and maintained an effective system of internal controls
over compliance requirements. We have performed an evaluation of the Department’s compliance with the following
assertions during the one-year period ended June 30, 2006. Based on this evaluation, we assert that during the yocar
ended June 30, 2006, the Department has matertally complied with the assertions below.

A. The Department has obligated, expended, received and used public funds of the State in accordance with
the purpose for which such funds have been appropriated or otherwise authorized by law.

B. The Department has obligated, expended, received and used public funds of the State in accordance with
any limitations, restrictions, conditions or mandatory directions imposed by law upon such obligation,
expenditure, receipt of use.

C. The Department has complied, in all material respects, with applicable laws and regulations, including the
State uniform accounting system, in its financial and fiscal operations.

D. The State revenues and receipts collected by the Department are in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and the accounting and recordkeeping of such revenues and receipts is fair, accurate and in
accordance with law.

E. The money or negotiable sccurities or similar assets handled by the Department on behalf of the State
ot held in trust by the Department have been properly and legally administered, and the accounting and
recordkeeping relating thereto is proper, accurate and in accordance with law.

Yours very truly,

State of Illinois, Department of Corrections
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE REPORT
SUMMARY

The compliance testing performed during this cxamination was conducted in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and in accordance with the Illinois State Auditing Act.

Effective June 1, 2006, Public Act 94-0696 established the Department of Juvenile Justice, This
Act transferred certain rights, powers, duties, and functions that were exercised by the Juvenile
Division of the Department of Corrections. Effective July 1, 2006 the Department of
Corrections’ school district was transferred to the Department of Juvenile Justice. For the easc
of reporling and accounting, information related to the Department of Juvenile Justice is
included within this report.

Auditors’ Reports
The Independent Accountants’ Reports on State Compliance, on Infernal Controls Over
Compliance and on Supplementary Information for State Compliance Purposes docs not

contain scope limitations, disclaimers or other significant non-standard language.

Summary of Findings

Number of This Report Prior Report
Findings 21 21
Repeated Findings 10 8
Prior Recommendations Implemented or Not Repeated 11 9

Details of findings are presented in a separately tabbed report section. The findings in this
report are a result of our compliance testing performed at the General Office (including School
District #428 and Field Services). This report does ngt include findings developed by the special
assistant auditors performing examinations of the individual adult and youth institutions, and
Correctional Industries.  Any findings developed by those special assistant auditors are
reported in their separate reports. Any findings regarding procedural or administrative matters
relating to all or multiple institutions of the Department of Corrections are included in this
report.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
Item
_No. =~ Page Description o
Findings (State Compliance)
06-01 14 Inadeguatc Procedures Regarding State Vehicles




STATE OF ILLINQIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

COMPLIANCE REPORT
SUMMARY

Item

No. Page Description
Findings (State Compliance) (Continued)

06-02 18 Adult Transition Centers Records Not Properly Maintained

06-03 22 Inadequate Documentation of Employee Training and No Designated
Training Coordinators

06-04 24 Payroll Timekeeping System Not Automated

06-05 25 Current Employee Performance Evaluations Not Documented

06-06 26 Efficiency Initiative Payments

06-07 28 Subcommittee on Women Offenders to the Adult Advisory Board not
Created

06-08 29 Lack of Required Admission Documents

06-09 31 Failure 10 Provide Requested Documentation Timely

06-10 32 Written Notice of Correspondence Restrictions Not Provided

06-11 33 Failure to Prepare and Submit Required Reports to the Governor and/or
the General Assembly as Required by State Statute

06-12 35 Failure to Timely Prepare and Submit Required Reports to Mandated
Entities

06-13 36 Failure to Properly Document and/or Send Required Notification to
Public Housing Agencies

06-14 37 Inmate Commissary Goods Marked Up More Than Allowed by Statute

06-15 39 Time Sheets Not Submitted in Compliance With the State Officials and

Employecs Ethics Act




STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

COMPLIANCE REPORT
SUMMARY
[tem
No. Page Description

Findings (State Compliance) (Continued)

06-16 41 Non-Compliance With Applicable Portions of the Arsonist Registration
Act

06-17 43 Department Transferred Money from Appropriations and Did Not Pay
Revolving Fund Billings

06-18 45 Untimely Submission of the Statements of Economic Interest

06-19 47 Untimely Signing and Executions of Written Contract Agreements

06-20 48 Standardized Procedures for Separated Employees Not Being Followed

06-21 50 Noncompliance With the Illinois Procurement Code
Prior Findings Not Repeated (State Compliance)

06-22 52 Failure to Implement Policy to Report State Housing Benefits as Income to
Employees as Required by Internal Revenue Regulations and State Statute

06-23 52 Department Appropriation Used to Pay Expenditures of Other State
Agency

06-24 52 No Representative on Interagency Review Committee as Required by
State Statute

06-25 32 Failure to Timely Address Mental Health Services Standards as Required
by State Statute

06-26 53 Failure to Fill Mandated Positions

06-27 53 Procedurcs Regarding Post Release Treatment Programs for Juvenile
Offenders Not Followed

06-28 53 The Department Failed to Notify the Applicable County State’s Attorney

within 14 days of the Settlement, Verdict or Judgment




STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEFPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

COMPLIANCE REPORT
SUMMARY

Item

No. Page Description
Prior Findings Not Repeated (State Compliance) (Continued)

06-29 53 Failure to Provide Notification of Release of Any Person from the
Department’s Juvenile Division

06-30 54 Department Could Not Provide Documentation of all Individuals Who
Were Consensually and Non-consentually Transferred to the Department
of Human Services

06-31 54 Failure to Provide Required Notification of the Placement of Persons into
Adult Transition Centers

06-32 54 Commissary Operations Not in Compliance with the Unified Code of

Corrections




STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE REPORT
EXIT CONFERENCE

The findings and recommendations appearing in this report were discussed with Department
personnel at an exit conference on May 22, 2007. Attending were:

Department of Corrections

‘Tony Small Deputy Director of Finance and Administration
Mary Ann Bohlen Accounting Manager
Bryan Gleckler Executive Assistant

Office of the Auditor General

Paul Usherwood Audit Manager

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC - Special Assistant Auditors

John Weber Executive
Christine Torres Senior Manager
Justina Scott Supervisor

Responses to the recommendations were provided by the Department via e-mail on June 4,

2007,




A\ Crowe

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Momber Harwalh International

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE,
ON INTERNAL. CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AND ON SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION FOR STATE COMPLIANCE PURPOSES

Honorable William G, Holland
Auditor General
State of Illinois

Compliance

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have examined the Illinois
Department of Correction's (the Department's) compliance with the requirements listed below,
as more fully described in the Audit Guide for Financial Audits and Compliance Attestation
Engagements of Hlinois State Agencies (Audit Guide) as adopted by the Auditor General,
during the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2006. The management of the Department is
responsible for compliance with these requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Department's compliance based on our examination.

A. The Department has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds of the State in
accordance with the purpose for which such funds have been appropriated or otherwise
authorized by law.

B. The Department has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds of the State in
accordance with any limitations, restrictions, conditions or mandatory directions
imposed by law upon such obligation, expenditure, receipt or usec.

C. The Department has complied, in all material respects, with applicable laws and
regulations, including the State uniform accounting system, in its financial and fiscal
operations.

D. The State revenues and receipts collected by the Department are in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations and the accounting and recordkeeping of such revenues
and receipts is fair, accurate and in accordance with law.

L. Money or negotiable securities or similar assets handled by the Department on behalf of
the State or held in trust by the Department have been properly and legally
administered and the accounting and recordkeeping relating thereto is proper, accurate,
and in accordance with law.




Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the standards applicable to attestation
engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; the Illinois State Auditing Act (Act); and the Audit Guide as adopted by the
Auditor General pursuant to the Act; and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis,
cvidence about the Department's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a
legal determination on the Department's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Department complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned
requirements during the year ended June 30, 2005 and 2006. However, the results of our
procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required
to be reported in accordance with criteria established by the Audit Guide, issued by the Illinois
Office of the Auditor General and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings as findings 06-01 through 06-03, 06-05 through 06-18 and 06-20 through 06-21.

As required by the Audit Guide, immaterial findings relating to instances of noncompliance
excluded from this report have been reported in a separate letter to your office.

Internal Control

The management of the Department is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations. In planming
and performing our examination, we considered the Department's internal control over
compliance with the aforementioned requirements in order to determine our examination
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, issued by the Illinois
Office of the Auditor General.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of
laws and regulations that would be material in relation to one or more of the aforementioned
requirements being examined may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses, However, the results of our procedures disclosed other matters involving internal
control which are required to be reported in accordance with criteria eslablished by the Audit
Guide, issued by the Illincis Office of the Auditor General and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings as findings 06-02, 06-04, 06-06 and 06-19.

As required by the Audit Guide, immaterial findings relating to internal control deficiencies
excluded from this report have been reported in a separate letter to your office.

1.



Supplementary Information for State Compliance Purposes

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Audilor General, we have audited the basic financial
statements of the Department of Corrections of the State of Illincis and have issued our report
thereon dated February 26, 2007, The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in
the table of contents as Supplementary Information for State Compliance Purposces, ts presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the Department of Corrections of the State of [llineis.  The accompanying schedute of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information, except for that portion marked “unaudited” on which we express no opinion, has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audil of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is stated fairly, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2006, taken as a whole. We have also previously audited,
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Department of Corrections of the State of [llinois’s basic financial slalements for the year ended
June 30, 2004. In our report dated December 14, 2004, we expressed a qualified opinion on the
respective financial statements of the governmental activitics, the major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information. In our opinion, the 2004 Supplementary Information for State
Compliance Purposes, except for the portion marked “unaudited” is fairly slated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2004, taken as a
whole.

This report 1s intended solely for the mformation and use of the Auditor General, the General
Assernbly, the Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, and managemenl and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W(Mﬁ,?dm} P74

(_rowe: (_hl/(_‘ and Company LLC

Oak Brook, [linois
February 26, 2007




M Crowe

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Member Horwath Interhational

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable William <. Holland
Auditor General, State of [llinois

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial statements
of the Nlinois Department of Corrections (the "Department") as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2006, and have issued our report thereon dated February 26, 2007. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

I[nternal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Department's internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over {inancial reporting. Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or more internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted certain deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which do not meet the criteria for reporting herein and
which are reported as State compliance findings in the Schedule of Findings. We also noted
certain immaterial instances of internal control deficiencies, which were reported to the
Department's management in a separate letter dated February 26, 2007.

12,



Compliance and Other Matlers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department's financial statements
are free of material misstalement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, rogulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain matters which are reported as State compliance
findings in the Schedule of Findings. We also noted certain other matters which have been
reported to the Department's management in a separate letter dated February 26, 2007.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, Department management, and
federal awarding agencies and pass through entifies and is not intended to be and should not be
uscd by anyone other than these specified parties.

Crowe C_hlfe and Compdny LL

(Oak Brook, Illinois
February 26, 2007

gﬂw 744




STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
CURRENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES
For the two years ended June 30, 2006

FINDING 06-01 (Inadequate Procedures Regarding State Vehicles)

The Department had several weaknesses regarding the reporting of vehicle accidents, vehicle
maintenance records, reporting the value of the “personal use” of State vehicles and annual
certifications of license and vehicle liability coverage.

We noted that accidents involving State vehicles were not reported in a timely manner, and
Department employees were not ensuring that vehicles personally assigned to them were
adequately maintained. In addition, the Department did not maintain adequate controls over
the reporting of the value of the “personal use” of a State Vehicle as a fringe benefit. As a result,
taxable fringe benefits related to the personnel use of State vehicles may not be properly
recorded. Finally, the annual certification of license and vehicle liability coverage was not
completed timely. Specific problems noted were as follows:

During our review of 25 reported accidents involving State owned vehicles, we noted 14
{56%) instances in which accidents had not been reported to the Department of Central
Management Services (DCMS) on a timely basis. We noted reports were submitted from 1 to
49 days late. An analysis of this issue from the last four audits is summarized in the
following table:

#of Sample B % Range of
Two Years Ending LExceptions Size Exceptions | Days Late
June 30, 2000 9 25 36% 10 to 49
June 30, 2002 11 25 44% 1 to 63
June 30, 2004 13 25 52% 210 279
June 30, 2006 14 25 56% 1t049

The Department’'s Administrative Directive 02.75.149 states, “Accidents invelving any
vehicle operated in the conduct of state business SHALL be promptly reported regardless of
the dollar amount.” It further states that the Vehicle Accident Coordinator shall submit
appropriate reports to DCMS within seven days following the accident. When accident
reports are not submitted in a timely manner, facts of the accident may become unclear and
it is more difficult to follow up on any possible liability to the Department or the State of
Hlinois.

During fiscal year 2006, we examined maintenance records for 25 vehicles and noted that for
21 (84%) we were unable to determine that proper maintenance records were maintained.
Supporting documents that contained the mileage associated with each oil change could not
be provided. An analysis of this issue for the last four audits is summarized in the
following table:

14.



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
CURRENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES
For the two years ended June 30, 2006

FINDING 06-01 {Inadequate Procedures Regarding State Vehicles) (Continued)

# of Sample % Range of Miles Oil
Two Years Ending Exceptions Size Exceptions | Change Past Due
June 30, 2000 5 25 20% 793 to 8,160
June 30, 2002 11 25 44 % 615 to 28,783
June 30, 2004 5 25 20% 1,227 t0 7,514
June 30, 2006 21 25 34% unavailable

The Department’'s Administrative Directive 01.02.106 (Maintenance and Use of Vehicles)
states “personally assigned vehicles...shall be maintained in full accordance with the
manufacturer’s recommendations contained in the owner’s manual. The person to whom
the vehicle is assighed shall ensure compliance.” Failure to adequately maintain vehicles
can cost the State significant amounts in future years through additional repair bills and
shortened useful lives for vehicles.

* The Department has adopted the U.S. Department of the Treasury Rule and developed
Form DC 352, Determination of Value of Personal Use of State Vehicle, to report the value of
“personal use” of a State vehicle as a fringe benefit. During our testing of employees who
were allowed the “personal use” of a State vehicle, we noted for 14 out of 18 (77%)
employees tested, the Form DC 352 was not on file with the Department for the correct
calendar year. We also noted cxceptlions in our testing of the Department’s Form DC 352
filing in the audits for the two years ending June 30, 2000 and 2004.

Under the Treasury Rule, the Department determines the value of a vehicle that the
Department provides to an employee for commuting use by multiplying each one-way
commute by $1.50. The Department requires all employces who are subject to vehicle usage
income to complete Form DC 352. Form DC 352 is to be completed by the required
employees at the start of the calendar year, and indicates this is an estimate of vehicle
personal use income for the coming year. This information is entered into the payroll
system so that taxes can be withheld cach pay period during the year rather than a one-time
lump sum withholding in December.

e During our testing, it was noted that 4 of 50 (8%) employces chosen for testing did not file
their required annual certifications of license and vehicle liability coverage by the July 31#
deadline. The certifications were from 11 to 39 days late. In addition, the Department could
not provide copies or support that 3 of 50 (6%) employees had filed the required annual
certification of license and vehicle liability coverage.

15.



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
CURRENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES
For the two years ended June 30, 2006

FINDING 06-01 (Inadequate Procedures Regarding State Vehicles) (Continued)

According to the lllinois Vehicle Code (625 ILCS 5/7-601) every employee of a State agency who
is assigned a specific State-owned vehicle on an ongoing basis must provide a certification
annually to the director or chief executive officer stating they arc duly licensed to drive the
assigned vchicle and that the employee has liability insurance coverage extending to the
employee when the assigned vehicle is used for other than official State business. Failure to
obtain updated certification of license and vcehicle liability coverage is a violation of a State
statute and may result in uninsured, underinsured and/or unlicensed drivers operating State
vehicles while performing State business.

Department personnel stated all employees who travel are required to follow the
Administrative Directive regarding vehicle accidents. Employees are encouraged fo submit
vehicle accident reports in a timely manner. The maintenance of personally assigned State
vehicles is the responsibility of the employee to whom the vehicle is assigned. Department
personnel further stated the oil changes are being performed; however the paperwork is not
reaching the responsible input operator. Department personnel also stated the issues relating to
reporting the “personal use” of State vehicles and late or missing certifications were due to
human error and oversight. The reasons as given by Department management for the
exceptions are cxactly the same as were provided in the audit for the two years ending June 30,
2004. (Finding Code Number 06-01, 04-03, 02-04, 00-03)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department:

+ Send a formal notice to those employees whose jobs involve travel to remind them of the
requirement and importance of filing accident reports in a timely manner.  The
Department should consider disciplinary action for those employees who do not file
reports in a timely manner,

« Monitor the submission of accident reports to ensure the requirements are being met as
required by the Department’s Administrative Directive.

» Enforce vehicle maintenance schedules to reduce future year expenditures for repairs
and to extend the useful lives of vehicles.

o Establish controls to ensure compliance with the Treasury Rule.

» Establish a procedurc to receive the DC 352 Form from each employee allowed the
“personal use’ of a State vehicle to ensure proper records for the reporting of fringe
benefits.

* Review procedures over timely filing of the required annual certification of licensc and
liability insurance.

16.



STATE QF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
CURRENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES
For the two years ended June 30, 2006

FINDING 06-01 (Inadequate Procedures Regarding State Vehicles) (Continued)
DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department continues to work to achieve the highest level of
internal controls regarding assets and vehicles. During the coming period, the Department will:
* Issue a memorandum from the Director mandating employee compliance with
Department Administrative Directives on all vehicle procedures, specifically:
o Timely reporting of accidents
o Following prescribed maintenance guidelines for personally assigned vehicles
o Timely submission of licensure, insurance and tax forms for personally assigned
vehicles
¢+ Insure that a dedicated staff pcrson is assigned to monitor compliance with
Department’s Administrative Directives governing use of state vehicles.
* Report all non compliance issues to the Director,
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FINDING 06-02 (Adult Transition Centers Records Not Properly Maintained)

The Department did not properly maintain records at the Adult Transition Centers (Centers).

Testing of the eight Adult Transition Centers for the two years ended June 30, 2006, produced
the following exceptions:

At 6 of the 8 Centers, year-end cash balances were misstated due to outstanding checks not
being removed from the listing in a timely manner. If a check is outstanding for a period
greater than three months, Department Administrative Directive 02.40.104 requires issuance
of a stop payment order unless the bank charge is cqual to or greater than 50 percent of the
check amount. Otherwise, these checks shall remain open until the account reaches a
dormant status (outstanding over 14 months)., When considered dormant, expenses shall be
reversed, the checking account balance shall be increased, and a check shall be written o
transfer the funds to the General Revenue Fund.

At 2 of the 8 Centers, we noted deficiencies related to disbursements from the Residents’
Trust Fund. Four checks were signed by only one authorized signatory for disbursements
from the Residents’ Trust Fund, instead of the two signatories required by the Department’s
Administrative Directive 02.40.102.

At 1 of the 8 Centers, we noted internal control deficiencies related to the Residents” Trust
Fund. Department employees were not able to provide deposit slips, cancelled checks or
bank statements for the months of June 2005 through January 2006. In addition, the request
for payment form was not completed for 7 of the 20 disbursements reviewed. As part of an
entities internal control process documents should be adequately maintained and available
to support transactions processed by the entity. According to Department Administrative
Directive 02.42,105 the request for payment form, DC 828, shall be completed by the inmate
for all disbursements.

At 2 of the 8 Centers, documents related to resident loans were not accurate and properly
supported. At one Center the total outstanding loans as of June 30, 2006, on the residents’
file amounted to $950. However, per the General Ledger, loans receivable amounted to $915.
[t appears that loan files were not properly maintained and supported. At another Center,
there was one resident who had an outstanding loan for fiscal year 2006 but no loan
agreement was maintained. Administrative Directive 02,42,116 requires that upon securing
a loan from the Department, the inmate shall be required to sign a loan agreement, which
stipulates the terms for loan repayment. In addition, the loan agreement file shall be placed
in the resident’s file until the loan is repaid.
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FINDING 06-02 (Adult Transition Centers Records Not Properly Maintained)

{Continued)

At 3 of the 8 Centers, we noted multiple exceptions in which there is inadequate control
over property and equipment records. For one of these Centers, 2 of the 5 items listed in the
Property Control System (PCS) could not be physically located. The value of the equipment
was $150. Department Administrative Directive 02.70.101 requires the Department
employce responsible for property control shall safeguard all property at their designated
location. At one Center, 1 of 5 items had two tag numbers attached to the equipment. At
two Centers, 12 of the 20 items physically tested had no tag number attached to the
equipment. Department Administrative Directive 02.70.105 requires that tag numbers be
affixed to the equipment as they are assigned. In addition, at these Centers, discrepancies
were noted regarding location in 4 of the 10 items tested. Two items were not in the location
that was listed on the Property Control System (PCS) report and the other 2 items did not
have an asset location included on the PCS report. At another Center the PCS report was
not available at ycar-end.

At 1 of the 8 Centers, all required documents were not included within the resident’s files.
Six of 20 files did not conlain the maintenance agreement. Department Administrative
Directive 02.42.115 requires each resident to sign a Maintenance Agreement, form DCA 781,
upon admission. Six of 20 files did not contain the trust signature authorization card.
Department Administrative Directive 02.42.110 requires that upon admission each resident
is to sign a Trust Fund Signature and Authorization card, form DOC 0006. Also, 2 of 20 files
did not have the aid notification form from the Department of Healthcare and Family
Services. Department Administrative Directive 04.23.110C, specifies written notification
from the Department of Healthcare and Family Services (Public Aid) of the monthly amount
due from the resident shall be placed in the resident's financial folder. Finally, 5 of 20 files
did nol contain the termination statement,

We reported similar weaknesses at the Centers in the previous seven audits. An analysis
summarizing the weaknesses identified in the past four audits is noted in the following table:
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FINDING 06-02 (Adult Transition Centers Records Not DProperly Maintained)
(Continued)
Two Years Ending June 30,
Description of Weaknesses 2006 2004 2002 | 2000

Year end cash balances misstated X X X X
Deficiencies in Trust & Resident’s funds disbursements X X X X
Errors in calculating resident maintenance fees X X

Receipts not deposited tmely X X X
Financial transaction not posted timely X X
Weaknesses in Centers internal controls X X X

Dormant resident accounts not processed timely X

Resident loan files not accurate X X

Inadequate controls of property and equipment X X

Financial reporting package inaccuracies X X
Resident financial files missing required documents X X X
Deficiencies in personal property listings X X
Due to / from accounts not agreeing X

The result of the exceptions noted led to inaccurate financial and resident information being
maintained at the Centers, as well as not safeguarding Department assets as a result of

inadequate internal controls.

Department personnel stated that the on-going issucs are the result of human errors. The reason
given by Department management for the exceptions is the same as was provided in the audit
for the two years ending June 30, 2004 (Finding Code Number 06-02, 04-04, 02-05, 00-05, 99-11,

98-08, 96-04, 94-05)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department improve accounting procedures and controls at the Centers.

Specifically, the Department should ensure:

+ Center accountants prepare year-end reconciliations using correct year-end balances, and
that accurate cash balances are reported to the General Office.

» Disbursements are properly processed and authorized, and Center personnel retain all

supporting documentation.
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FINDING 06-02 (Adult Transition Centers Records Not Properly Maintained)
(Continued)

RECOMMENDATION (Continued)

* All required documentation is maintained, including deposit slips, bank statements and
required supporting documentation.

* Loans to residents are properly documented and accurate.

» Property and equipment records are properly recorded and maintained.

All required forms are included within the resident’s file.
DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department has made significant improvements in the
maintenance in the records of the transitional centers during the past years. Increased
utilization of the automated accounting systems will address several of the exceptions noted.
All centers have been reminded of the importance of timely and accurate record maintenance
and there will be zero toleration of failures to comply.
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FINDING 06-03 (Inadequate Documentation of Employee Training and No Designated
Training Coordinators)

The Department is not properly documenting that all employees complete their minimum
required number of training hours. Inaddition, no Training Coordinators were designated.,

During our review of Department training records for the two years ending Junc 30, 2006 the
Department was unable to document that 30 of the 30 employees tested (100%) had met the
minimum training hour requirement. Fifteen employees were from the General Office, five
were from the School District and ten were from Field Services. There were no designated
Training Coordinators for the General Office, School District or Field Services. We reported the
same issue of not being able to document the minimum training hour requirements to the
Department in the previous three audits. A summary of the results for the last four audits is
noted in the following table:

# of Sample %

Two Years Ending, Exceptions Size Exceptions
June 30, 2000 8 25 32%
June 30, 2002 19 29 65%
June 30, 2004 14 35 40%
June 30, 2006 30 30 100%

According to the Department’s Administrative Directive 03.03.102, Clerical and Support staff
{primarily those who have little or no inmate contact) are required to complete a minimum of 16
hours of training each year after their first year on the job. All other employees are required to
complete a minimum of 40 hours each year. To ensure all employees receive training, the
Directive further instructs that Training Coordinators shall be designated. The Training
Coordinator shall maintain an “Employee Training Record,” (Form DOC 0220) or a computer
printout with the same information, for cach employee that has been assigned to him or her.
Since the Department failed to maintain the required documentation, we were unable to
detcrmine if employees met the minimum lraining requirements.

Employees who have not received the minimum training may not be receiving impotant
information and background preparation for their specific job duties. Training is crucial to
Department employees, especially in the case of individuals who have direct contact with
inmates. In addition, the lack of designated Training Coordinators precludes the Department
from ensuring that all employees receive the required training.
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FINDING 06-03 (Inadequate Documentation of Employee Training and No Designated
Training Coordinators) (Continued)

Department personnel indicated that the lack of training documents was a result of untimely
review and monitoring. The reason given by Department management for the exceptions is the
same as was provided in the audits for the two years ending June 30, 2004, 2002 and 2000.
(Finding Code Number 06-03, 04-06, 02-07, 00-07)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department allocate sufficient resources to comply with Administrative
Directive 03.03.102 to document and cnsure employees receive the required training to enable
them to perform their specific job duties.

DEPARTMENT RESIPONSE

Recommendation Implemented.  The Department of Corrections has named a training
coordinator for the General Office and related complex. The coordinator will be responsible to
ensure the proper tracking of training received and work with the supervisors to ensure
training records are maintained.
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FINDING 06-04 (Payroll Timekeeping System Not Automated)
The Department-wide payroll imekeeping system was not automated.

During the engagement period the Department implemented additional functions of the payroll
system they use to further automate the processing. This updated processing, however, did not
include all employces. We noted cach correctional center still maintained a manual
timekeeping system for several hundred employees. Correctional center employees sign in and
out, and sign-in sheets are sent to the timekecping clerk. Other information, including
notification of absence and call-in reports, are also forwarded to the timekeepers. No
automation is involved except for the processing of payroll warrants.

FPrudent business practices suggest that controls available through automated timekeeping
systems can provide greater efficiency and reduce the potential for costly errors or employee
abuse.

Department officials indicated there were insufficient funds available to develop a statewide
system to replace the outdated manual system used for approximately 13,500 employees. The
Department, as a part of the Shared Services initiative, is participating in the design sessions for
an integrated financial system, which will include timekeeping and payroll applications,

The lack of an automated timekeeping system increases the risk of errors and reduces the
control efficiencies for accurately tracking time. (Finding Code Number 06-04, 04-07, 02-08, 00-
09, 99-17, 98-17)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department implement an automated timekeeping system.
DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. As part of the Shared Services Program statewide effort to

improve processes, the Department is scheduled to be one of the pilot agencies for the
implementation of an automated timekeeping solution.
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FINDING 06-05 (Current Employee Performance Evaluations Not Documented)
The Department did not conduct performance evaluations in a timely manner.

During our testing of a sample of 50 employee performance evaluations, 10 (20%) were not
performed on a timely basis. The performance evaluations were 3 months to 2 years late in
being performed.

Personnel Rules issued by the Department of Central Management Services (80 Ill. Admin.
Code 302.270) require performance records to include an evaluation of employee performance
prepared by each agency not less often than annually. In addition, according to the
Department’s Administrative Directive 03.03.110, each employee shall have a list of measurable
objectives for a specific work period and shall receive a documented evaluation of his or her job
performance at least annually. Supervisory staff shall conduct a formal job performance
evaluation on each employee prior to completion of any probationary period and annually
thereafter. The results of the evaluation must be submitted at least 15 days prior to the
employee’s anniversary date or the last day of the probationary period.

According to Department officials, supervisors and managers are aware of the Directive,
However, the late evaluations could be due to a number of factors, including current staffing
constraints and lack of follow up.

Documented employee performance evaluations provide a basis for promotion, demotion,
discharge, layoff, recall, or reinstatement. (Finding Code Number 06-05)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department follow the Personnel Rules and their own Administrative
Directive and hold management accountable for completing employee performance evaluations
on a timely basis.

DEPARTMENT RESFONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will make every effort to ensure evaluations are
completed in a timely manner. Pre-notifications and deadline reminders will be sent to
managers and supervisors to ensure evaluations are completed.
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FINDING 06-06 (Efficiency Initiative Payments)

The Department made payments for efficiency initiative billings without adequate
documentation to support how the amounts were calculated or determined.

Public Act 93-0025, in part, outlines a program [or efficiency initiatives to reorganize,
restructure and reenginecr the business processes of the State. The State Finance Act details
that the amount designated as savings from efficiency initiatives implemented by the
Department of Central Management Services (CMS) shall be paid into the Efficiency Initiatives
Revolving Fund. “State agencies shall pay these amounts...from the line item appropriations
where the cost savings are anticipated to occur.” (30 ILCS 105/ 6p-5)

During fiscal ycar 2005, the Department received two billings totaling $4,733,445 from CMS for
savings from cfficiency initiatives. The initiatives and amounts billed to the Department were:

Billed
__ Billing Date Initiative Amount
1/24/05 Procurement Efficiency $ 2,326,782
5/02/05 Information Technology 2,406,663
Total: | $ 4,733,445

The Department received documentation with the billings from CMS detailing from which line
item appropriations savings were anticipated to occur. However, the Department did not
obtain or request additional supporting documentation on how the amounts were calculated or
determined.

The table below provides a summary of the specific fund and line item the Department used to
make payments for the efficiency initiative. Additionally, the table illustrates which efficiency
initiative was paid from the linc item appropriation.

Total
Amount Appropriation

Fund | Line Hem Appropriation Paid for Line Item Efficiency Initiative
001 Contractual Services expd. | $1,991,700 5 6,010,764 Information Technology
001 Contractual Services expd. 1,213,300 6,010,764 Procurement

001 Travel expd. 20,000 273,110 Procurement

001 Commodities expd. 913,500 157,497 Procurement

001 Equipment expd. 155,000 38,389 Procurcment

001 Telecommunication expd. 415,000 2,800,745 Information Technology
001 | Operation of Auto expd. 25,000 259,500 Procurement
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FINDING 06-06 (Efficiency Initiative Payments) (Continued)

Before payment occurs, the Department should review all supporting documentation and
request additional supporting documentation to determine the computation of the efficiency
billing methodology appears proper and is for the appropriate purposes. Efficiency initiatives
billings did not occur in fiscal year 2006. (Finding Code Number 06-06, 04-01)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that prior to paying efficiency billings the Department seek an explanation
from the Department of Central Management Services as to how savings levels were calculated,
or otherwise arrived at, and how savings achieved or anticipated impact the Department's
budget.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE
Recommendation Accepted. The Department will work with CMS on future initiative billings

to determine appropriate expenditure information and benefits to be derived from the
payments.
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FINDING 06-07 (Subcommitiee on Women Offenders to the Adult Advisory Board not
Created)

The Department did not establish a subcommittee on Women Offenders to the Adult Advisory
Board.

The subcommittec is to advise the Adult Advisory Board and the Director on all policy matters
and programs of the Department with regard to the custody, care, study, discipline, training
and treatment of women in the State correctional institutions and for the care and supervision
of women released on parole.

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-2-6) requires a subcommittee on Women
Offenders to the Adult Advisory Board be created. The Subcommittee shall be composed of 3
members of the Advisory Board appointed by the Chairman who shall designate one member
as the chairman of the Subcommittee. The Subcommittee shall meet no less often than quarterly
and at other times at the call of its chairman.

Department officials stated that the subcommittee has not yet been formed as a result of
oversight.

Failure to establish the required subcommittee is non-compliance with a required State statute.
(Finding Code Number 06-07)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department establish the subcommittee on Women Offenders and hold the
required quarterly meetings.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation partially Implemented. The Adult Advisory Board has met to make
recommendations on members to sit on the Women offenders subcommittee.  The
recommendations were revicwed by the Chairperson and the potential members notified. The
Board is waiting for responses from the potential members.
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FINDING 06-08 (Lack of Required Admission Documents)

The Department did not receive all the required admission documents or specify why they were
not received upon a person’s incarceration as specified by the Uniform Code of Corrections.

In testing two of the Department’s four receiving stations we found they did not receive all the
required admission information. We noted the following exceptions:

s At one receiving station we noted: 1) Information was not always received from the counties
to document the offender’s sentence or time served with the county. 2) It was also noted
that very few counties actually provided a jail credit sheet or details of the inmate’s behavior
while in custody at the county. 3) We also found documents verifying the identity of the
person being incarcerated were not always received as required.

*+  We noted inmates transferred from Cook County did not have any of the required
information.

The Unified Code of Corrections, 730 ILCS 5/3-8-1 and 20 IIl. Adm. Codc 107.20 list scveral
documents required at the time custody is transferred. These documents include a record of the
person’s time, behavior and conduct, and verification of the identity of the person. If these
items were not received, a statement of the reason why they cannot be delivered should be
documented.

Department officials stated the information received during the transfer is dependent on what
the County transferring the person provides.

Failure to receive or document the the lack of receipt of the required information is non-
compliance with a required State statute and the Illinois Administrative Code. In addition, it
also hinders the Department’s efficiency in processing the new admissions by not having all the
required documents. (Finding Code Number 06-08)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department obtain all required admission documents before acceptance of
the person. If the documents are not available, a written statement should be prepared
indicating why the required documents were not received.
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FINDING 06-08 (Lack of Required Admission Documents) (Continued)

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will implement a procedure to record any

documents not received and the reason why if known.
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FINDING 06-09 (Failure fo Provide Requested Documentation Timely)

The Department did not provide requested documentation to the auditors timely. Thus, we
were unable to complete the compliance testing of a State statute that requires the Department
to perform specific duties or responsibilities.

As part of our testing of the Department we selected 39 State statutes that require the
Department to perform specific duties and responsibilities. We were unable to complete the
testing of one State statute because the Department failed to timely provide documentation to
perform the testing. Information was first requested from the Department to test the statute on
May 30, 2006. Six subsequent requests were also made for the information to complete the
testing. The State statute that could not be tested was:

» 730 ILCS 5/3-8-2 - Provides for social evaluation, physical evaluation and HIV testing
upon admission. Information on the Department’s administrative directives were
provided on May 31, 2007. OQur fieldwork end date was February 26, 2007. We will
follow-up on statutory compliance in our next engagement of the Department.

State agencies are required by State law to perform specific duties and responsibilities. Testing
of the State statutes provides feedback to the State Legislaturc regarding an agency’s
compliance with statutory requirements.

Department management indicated they were unable to provide the requested information
timely because of timing constraints and oversights.

Without being provided support for compliance testing the above State statute timely, we were
unable to determine if the Department was performing all their required duties and
responsibilites. (Finding Code Number 06-09)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department timely provide information requested to test compliance with
State statutes,

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Implemented. The Department will comply timely and accurately with all
requests and be vigilant in the follow up to determine the auditor’s questions and needs are met
in regards to mandalc testing,
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FINDING 06-10 (Written Notice of Correspondence Restrictions Not Provided)

The Department did not provide all inmates with written notice of outgoing mail restrictions or
prohibitions.

We selected 3 centers to test if the Department was providing notices to inmates informing
them they were no Jonger to contact a victim or member of the victim’s family by mail.
Through our testing we noted 2 of the 3 centers were not providing written notices to the
inmates prohibiting correspondence with a victim or members of a victim’s family.

According to 730 ILCS 5/3-8-7.5, “The Department shall notify the inmate that the victim or
members of the victim's family have provided notice to the Department that the persons do not
wish correspondence from that inmate during the incarceration.” In addition, 20 IlI. Admin.
Code 525.130(j) states “If an offender is prohibited from sending a letter or portions thereof, the
offender shall be informed in writing of the decision.”

Department officials indicated they had informed the inmates verbally of the restriction or
prohibition and believed the verbal notification was sufficient.

Failure to provide written notification to an inmate of restrictions on their correspondence with
a vichim or a member of a victim’s family is non-compliance with a required State statute and
the [llinois Administrative Code. (Finding Code Number 06-10)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department provide written notice of all correspondence restrictions or
prohibitions to inmates. In addition, a copy of this written notice should be kept in an inmate’s
file.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will issuc a reminder memo to all wardens

regarding the requirement to provide written notice of correspondence restrictions to the
inmates and to file one copy in the inmate’s master file.
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FINDING 06-11 (Failure to Prepare and Submit Required Reports to the Governor

and/or the General Assembly as Required by State Statute)

The Department either did not submit or did not submit timely certain required reports to the
Governor and/ or the General Assembly. All of the reports noted as either not being filed or not
being filed timely were also identified as exceptions in our report for the two years ended June
30, 2004. We identified the following exceptions:

The Illinois Welfare and Rehabilitation Services Planning Act (20 ILCS 10/3) requires that
on or before the first Friday in April of each odd-numbered year, selected agencies,
including the Department of Corrections, shall prepare a comprehensive plan and submit it
to the General Assembly. The human services plan was not submitted during the audit
period.

Pupillometer technology is the measurement of the pupils reaction to light as an alternative
to urine testing for purposes of drug screening committed persons who have alcohol and
drug problems. The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-2-2(b-1)) states the
Department must report on the effectiveness of the pilot program for pupillometer
technology by January 1, 2003 to the General Assembly. The pupillometer report was
submitted in February 2005.

The requirements of the Unified Code of Corrections {730 ILCS 5/3-5-3(a) & (b)) are
addressed in the Department’s Annual Report. 730 ILCS 5/3-5-3(a) requires the Director to
submit a report concerning the state and condition of all persons committed to the
Department, its institutions, facilities and programs, of all money expended and received,
and on what accounts expended and received. 730 ILCS 5/3-5-3(b) requires the Director to
submit a report to the Governor and State Legislature on any inadequacies in the
institutions, facilities or programs of the Depariment and also such amendments to the
laws of the State which in the Director’s judgment are necessary in order to best advance
the purposes of the Unified Code of Correclions. This report is to be submitted on an
annual basis to the Governor and State Legislature. The annual report will be submitted
during June/ fuly 2007 for fiscal years 2004 through 2007,

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-5-3(d}) requires the Department to submit
to the Governor and the General Assembly a 5-year long-range planning document for
adult female offenders under the Department’s supervision, The document shall detail how
the Department plans to meet the housing, cducational/training, Correctional Industries
and programming needs of the escalating adult female offender population by January 1
every two years after January 1, 1991 to the Governor and General Assembly. The 5-year
Female Plan was not submitted during the audit period.
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FINDING 06-11 (Failure to Prepare and Submit Required Reports to the Governor
and/or the General Assembly as Required by State Statute) (Continued)

¢ The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-6-3a (4)) requires the Department to submit
to the Governor and General Assembly a report on the results of evalualions on
educational, vocational, substance abuse and correctional industry programs under which
good conduct credit may be increased by September 30t of each year. The Early Release
Credit Report was nol submitted during the audit period.

* The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/5-8-1.3(m)) requires the Department to
provide to the Governor and the General Assembly a report on the pilot residential and
treatment program for women. The report should include the composition of the program
by offenders, sentence, age, offense and race before Seplember 30t of each year. The Pilot
Women Program Report was not submitted during the audit period.

Department staff indicated the reports were not completed due to timing constraints and
conflicting priorities.

Failure to prepare and submit required reports/plans to the Governor and General Assembly
prevents the appropriate oversight authority from receiving relevant feedback and monitoring
on programs and can have an cffect on future decisions since information was not provided. In
addition, by not preparing and submitting the required reports/plans the Department is not in
compliance with a State statute. (Finding Code Number 06-11, 04-11)

RECOMMENDATION

We are again recomunending the Department prepare the required reports/plans on a timely
basis and submit them to the required partics in accordance with State statutes.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted.  The Department continues to work to meet the reporting
requirements. The annual reports {or the audit period will be issued during June/July of 2007.
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FINDING 06-12 (Failure to Timely Prepare and Submit Required Reports to Mandated
Entities)

We noted 2 instances in which the Department did not timely preparc and submit required
annual reports. These cxceptions were also identified in our report for the lwo years ending
June 30, 2004,

« The Department did not make available on a timely basis a report to trial and appellate
court judges for their use in imposing or reviewing sentences, The Unified Code of
Corrections (730 ILCS 5/5-5-4.3) states that the Department of Corrections shall publish the
report on an annual basis no later than April 30. The Department did not preparc and
publish the report during the audit period,

* The Department did not complete the final submission of information for the Service Efforts
and Accomplishments (SEA) Report as required by the Office of the State Comptroller for
the year ended June 30, 2006 Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS) procedure
33.20.20 note the form is to be completed annually and sent to the Comptroller’s Office as
part of the year-end agency GAAP reporting process and is due to the Comptroller’s Office
by October 15th,

Department staff indicated the reports were not completed due to timing constraints and
conflicting prioritics,

Failure to timely prepare and submil required reports prevents the intended entities from
receiving relevant feedback and monitoring and can have an effect on future decisions since
information was not provided. In addition, by not timely preparing and submitting the
required reports the Department is not in compliance with State statutes. (Finding Code
Number 06-12, (4-16)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department prepare and submit the reports in accordance with the
established requirements.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted.  The Department continues to work to meet the reporting
requirements. The future SEA reports will be submitted per the Comptrollet’s requirements,
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FINDING 06-13 (Failure to Properly Document and/or Send Required Notification to
Public Housing Agencies)

The Department could not provide documentation that the required statulorily required
notification was sent to the appropriate Public I{ousing Agencies addressing where individuals
reside or resided.

We selected a sample of 11 individuals who were in the custody of the Department or on parole
or mandatory supervised rclease and who were currently residing in public housing to
determine if the proper nofification was sent. For 3 of 11 (27%) individuals tested we
determined the Department did not have documentation that the proper notification was sent
to the appropriate Public Housing Agencies. This exception was also identified in our report
for the two years ending June 30, 2004.

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-14-1(c)) states that if a person convicted of a
felony who is in the custody of the Department of Corrections or on parole or mandatory
supervised release informs the Department that he or she has resided, resides or will reside at
an address that is a housing facility owned, managed, operated or leased by a public housing
agency, the Department must send written notification of that information to the public housing
agency that owns, manages, operates or leases the housing facility.

The Department indicated the errors noted were due to oversights.

Failure to send written notification to the appropriate Public Housing Agency of where
offenders reside or resided is noncompliance with State statute, (Finding Code Number 06-13,
04-18)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department provide written notification to the appropriate Public Housing
Agency that a felon in the custody of the Department of Corrections on parole or mandatory
release resided, resides or will reside there as required by State Statute.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will make cvery effort to retain documentation of
notifications sent to the Public Housing Agencies.
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FINDING 06-14 (Inmate Commissary Goods Marked Up More Than Allowed by
Statute)

The Department added a charge to the purchase price of the goods to be resold in the
commissaries prior to adding the statutorily allowed percentage mark-up to arrive at the sales
price to charge inmates. The Department phased in the application of the charge. Effective
November 1, 2005 the charge was set at 3%. The Department raised the charge on January 1,
2006 to 7%.

Fiscal Year 2006
Cost of the goods Dollars collected | Statutorily allowed | Total cost of the goods
purchased for sale in the | as a result of the | 25%-35% mark-up sold in the Inmate
Inmate Commissaries 3%-7% charge | on the cost of goods Commissaries
$ 25,122,165 $ 1,266,911 $  7486,762 $ 33,875,838

The Unified Code of Corrections, 730 ILCS 5/3-7-2a, sets forth “the selling prices for all goods
shall be sufficient to cover the costs of the goods and an additional charge of up to 35% for
tobacco products and up to 25% for non-tobacco products. The amount of the additional
charges for goods sold at commissaries serving inmates shall be based upon the amount
necessary to pay for the wages and benefits of the commissary employees who are employed in
commissary faciliies of the Department.” Per the Comptrollers” Statewide Accounting
Management System Procedures Manual (SAMS), procedure 03.06.20, “The cost of the
inventory item is the price paid or the consideration given to acquire the inventory item.
Included in the cost are all direct and indirect costs incurred during transportation.” Based on
the above statute and SAMS procedure, the maximum amount to charge inmates for items sold
in the inmate commissary would be the purchase price of the item plus any {ransportation costs
the total of which would then be marked up to a maximum of 25%-35%.

Department management stated the 3%, and later 7% charge was to help cover the costs
associated with those of State employees who work in the inmate commissary, inmate labor for
the commissary and utilities to operate the commissary. Items included in State employee costs
were payroll, benefits and mandated uniforms. A cost of utilities per square foot was
determined and applied to the area of the commissaries. Inmate labor included only inmate
payroll. The Department indicated the amounts were compiled based on fiscal year 2005 actual
information. Department management also noted that based on their interpretation of the
statute and SAMS procedures they were aliowed to apply this charge.
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FINDING 06-14 (Inmate Commissary Goods Marked Up More Than Allowed by
Statute) (Continued)

Since the statutorily allowed 25% -35% mark-up is to cover the cost of wages and benefits of
commissary employees, portions of the 3%-7% charge are duplicative and exceed the statutorily
allowed mark-up, The Department’s methodology for determining the cost of goods to be
resold in the commissaries should agree with SAMS and statutory provisions. (Finding Code
Number 06-14)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department revise its methodology for computing cost of goods to ensure
included costs are not duplicative and comply with the statute and only mark-up the goods for
resale in the inmate commissary the allowable amounts. In addition, if the Department believes
they are statutorily allowed to impose the additional charge, we further recommend they seek a
formal written Attorney General opinion on this matter,

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. Histerically, the Department has reflected a cost based upon the
items only. The Department intends fo work with the other authoritative State agencies
regarding a morc refined interpretation of cost of goods,




STATL QF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT QF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
CURRENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES
For the two ycars ended June 30, 2006

FINDING 06-15 (Time Sheets Not Submitted in Compliance With the State Officials
and Employees Ethics Act)

The Department is not requiring all its employees to submit timesheets as required by the State
Officials and Employees Ethics Act (Act).

The Act requires the Department to adopt personnel policies consistent with the Act. The Act (5
ILCS 430/3-5(c)} states, “The policies shall require State employees to periodically submit time
sheets documenting the time spent each day on official State business to the nearest quarter
hour.”

Per a memo from the Director certain Department “management” employees are required to
complete timesheets that designate hours spent on official State business. Those employees not
designated as “management” employees, which is a majority of the Department’s employees,
do not maintain time sheets. Non-management employee time worked is tracked using a Roll
Call / Sign In Sheet. For security employees a supervisor documents their attendance or
absence when roll call is taken prior to the beginning of their shift; the supervisor signs off as
approving the Roll Call / Sign In Sheet. Non-security employees also document their
attendance on a Roll Call / Sign In Sheet by signing and entering the times when they arrive
and leave; the Roll Call / Sign In Sheet is approved by the area supervisor. The Roll Call / Sign
In Sheets are accumulated daily and forwarded to the respective timekeepers who transfer the
information to individual employee time sheets where attendance or reason for absence is
documented. The Roll Call / Sign In Sheet does not document the time spent each day on
official State business to the nearest quarter hour and is not submitted by the employee in
compliance with the Act.

Department management stated they are working within the limits of the current system.

By notl maintaining appropriate time sheets, the Department is not in compliance with the Act.
(Finding Code Numbcr 06-15)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department amend its policies to require cmployees to maintain time
sheets in compliance with the Act.
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FINDING 06-15 (Time Sheets Not Submitted in Compliance With the State Officials
and Employees Ethics Act) (Continued)

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. As part of the Shared Services Program statewide effort to
improve processes, the Depariment is scheduled to be one of the pilot agencics for the
implementation of an automated timckeeping solution.
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FINDING 06-16 (Non-Compliance With Applicable Portions of the Arsonist
Registration Act)

The Department had not implemented a process to inform and document convicted arsonists of
their duty to register upon their discharge, parole or release in accordance with the Arsonist
Registration Act.

The Arsonist Registration Act (730 ILCS 148) (Act), cffective January 1, 2005, requires
Department facilities to perform numerous functions prior to the discharge, release or parole of
individuals convicted of arson. Specifically, the facility shall notify the individual of their duty
to register in person and if establishing a residence out of State their duty to register in the new
State. The facility shall require the individual to read and sign a form indicating they
understand their duty to register. The facility shall give one copy of the form to the person and
shall send one copy to each of the law enforcement agencies having jurisdiction where the
person expects to reside, work, and attend school upon his or her discharge.

This Act applies only to persons who comumit arson on or after the effective date of the Act,
which was January 1, 2005, and does not apply to any person who committed arson before the
effective date of the Act. In addition, until the Department of State Police establishes the I-
CLEAR database to maintain this information on a statewide basis this Act only applies to
arsonists who reside, are emploved, or attend school within the City of Chicago. The
Department identified two individuals who were discharged, paroled or released that met the
criteria and who were not informed of their duty to register with the City of Chicago.

Department management indicated the City of Chicago has not specified any requirements for
the registration process. The Department sends an automated file daily to the Chicago Police
Department which clearly outlines the information regarding all persons being released in the
City of Chicago.

Non-compliance with the Act is a violation of a statutory mandate. In addition, by not
informing the individual of their duty to register the appropriate authoritics may not be aware
that a person convicted of that type of offense is residing in that particular arca. (Finding Code
Number 06-16)

RECOMMENDATION
We recommend the Departrment implement a process to inform and document individuals

being discharged, paroled or released that have been convicted of their duty to register in
accordance with the Arsonist Registration Act.
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FINDING 06-16 (Non-Compliance With Applicable Portions of the Arsonist
Registration Act} (Continued)

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department sends Chicago PD a computer file on a daily basis
in accordance with the requirements. An automated form will be created to inform the
individuals being released of their requirement to potentially register with the City of Chicago.
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FINDING 06-17 (Department Transferred Money From Appropriations and Did Not
Pay Revolving Fund Billings)

The Department purchases various goods and services from the Department of Central
Management Services (DCMS) and is billed for these through revolving funds, which are
accounted for as Internal Service Funds. The Department transferred funds from the
appropriations of four classifications that should have been used to pay billings from the DCMS
revolving funds, the majority of these transfers occurred during the fiscal year 2006 lapse
period.

In our testing we found the Department still owed the DCMS revolving funds the following
amounts after available funds had been used to pay fiscal year 2006 charges.

Statistical Services Revolving Fund %2,718,044
Telecommunications Revolving Fund 1,746,226
State Garage Revolving Fund 1,148,920
Paper and Printing Revolving Fund 4,243

Fiscal year 2006 charges owed DCMS $5,617,433

During our testing we identified the Department transferred funds out of appropriations which
are used to pay DCMS revolving fund billings. The net amount of transfers (cut) / in, for fiscal
year 2006 for the noted appropriations is as follows:

Telecommunication expenditures $(3,328,100)
Electronic Data Processing expenditures ( 885,800)
Printing expenditures ( 158,400)
Operation of Automotive expenditures 326,600
Net Transfers out $(4,045.700)

Of the above transfers, $510,000 occurred prior to June 30, 2006; the rest of the transfers
occurred during July and August of 2006, which was the fiscal year 2006 lapse period. If the
Department had not transferred the funds and used the original amounts appropriated to pay
DCMS revolving fund billings they would have only owed DCMS approximately $1.57 million
as opposcd 10 $3.6 million. By transferring the funds from these appropriations during the
lapse period the Department left the DCMS revolving fund billings unpaid at the end of fiscal
year 2006 in order to pay other bills.

Department management indicated they felt the statutory allowance for 2% fund transfers was
applicable in this instance. The appropriation transfers were needed to meect the other
mandated obligations of the Department at the end of fiscal year 2006.
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FINDING 06-17 {Department Transferred Money From Appropriations and Did Not
Pay Revolving Fund Billings) (Continued)

The Department transferred funds out of specific appropriations when all of those funds would
be needed to pay outstanding liabilitics, thereby obtaining an interest free loan from the DCMS
revolving funds until the next fiscal year. Per Section 1000.50 of the DCMS Administrative
Rules (74 1ll. Admin. Code 1000.50), “User agencies shall not leave Internal Service Fund bills
unpaid in order to circumvent fiscal year budgetary controls”. The use of transfers in this
manner distorts the actual budgetary process by misleading what was actually used for the
fiscal year related to those appropriations. (Finding Code Number 06-17)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department follow the DCMS Administrative Rules and only transfer
funds out of appropriations used to pay the revolving fund billings when it is determined there
may be excess funds and not to pay other obligations when those funds would be needed to pay
current billings.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department used the statutorily allowed ability to make 2%
appropriation transfers as stated within the State Finance Act.  Internal Service Funds through
CMS have the authority under Title 74 Part 1000 of the Administrative Code to issue catch up
billings to State agencies for any open invoices at the end of a fiscal year. Specifically CMS “..,
shall issue catch-up billings in the subsequent fiscal year for those user agency accounts which
show an accounts receivable debit balance for the prior fiscal year.” The Department relied on
the Code provision that requires agencies to make reasonable efforts to review, approve, and
pay all Internal Service Fund bills in the fiscal year in which the liability was incurred or within
the fiscal year that the Department issues a catch-up billing. The Department elected to use the
flexibility provided by catch-up billings to free up funds for other mandated obligations.
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FINDING 06-18 (Untimely Submission of the Statements of Economic Interest)

Seven of the Department’s employees did not file their Statements of Economic Interest by the
required date. In addition, the Department did not notify the Secretary of State of all employees
whose positions subjected them to the requirements to file Statements of Economic Interest.

During our lesting, we noted the following:

s  Sevenof 73 (10%) Statements of Economic Interest examined were filed and received by the
Secretary of Stale Index Department (Index Departiment) 1 to 14 days late.

» Tour of 73 (5%) employees were not notified they were required to file a Statement of
Economic Interest in fiscal year 2005. As a result, these 4 employees did not file Statements
of Economic Interest in fiscal year 2005. These employees were subsequently notified and
included in the list of filers in fiscal year 2006.

The Illinois Governmental Ethics Act (5 ILCS 420/4A-105) states, “... by May 1 of each year a
statement must be filed by cach person whose position at that time subjects him to the filing
requirements of Section 4A-101 unless he has already filed a statement in relation to the same
unit of government in that calendar year.”

The Illincis Governmental Ethics Act (5 ILCS 420/4A-106) requires, “On or before February 1
annually, (1) the chief administrative officer of any State agency in the executive, legislative, or
judicial branch employing persons required to file under item (f) or item (1) of Section 4A-101
shall certify to the Secretary of State the names and mailing addresses of those persons, .... In
preparing the lists, each chief administrative officer, or his or her designee, shall set out the
names in alphabetical order.”

Department management stated they did not include the above referenced employees in the
listing submitted to the Index Department due to oversight.

Failure to file Statements of Economic Interest on a timely basis could result in the State’s
inability to properly detect transactions involving parties having financial, business or personal
relationships with Department personnel. (Finding Code Number 06-18)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend Department management remind employees of their responsibility to timely
submit Statements of Economic Interest. Further, Departiment management should review and
update the list of those employees who are in positions required to file Statements of Economic
Interest to ensure an accurate and complete listing is submitted to the Secretary of State.
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FINDING 06-18 (Untimely Submission of the Statements of Economic Interest)
(Continued)
DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Implemented. The Department has implemented a process during FY07 to
remind the applicable employees of their obligation to submit the Statements in a timely
manner. Additionally, on an annual basis, the Ethics officer, in coordination with the personnel
department, will review the Department’'s employees and ensure appropriate staff are
submitted to the Index Office timely, in order to receive Statements.
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FINDING 06-19 (Untimely Signing and Execution of Written Contract Agreements)

In testing contractual services expenditures at the Illinois Department of Corrections
correctional centers (centers) we noted certain centers did not obtain all the required signatures
on contracts before their starting date.

During our contract testing, center auditors identified exceptions at 7 out of 35 of the centers.
For the 7 centers with identified exceptions, they noted 14 of 68 (21%) contract agreements
tested were not signed by all parties prior 1o the beginning date as set forth in the contract
agreements. The average length of time between the beginning date of the contract agreements
and their final required signature was 18 days, with a range of 2 days to 41 days. The contract
agreements were {or a varicty of goods and services ranging from medical services, to repairs
and majntenance. The total of the contract exceptions identified was approximately $11 million.

Department management stated the contract lag was a result of several factors, including the
decentralized contract function during the early part of the audit period; the changes in the
procurement rules and oversights.

Oversight and public accountability is compromised when confract agreements are not signed
in a timely manner.

Contract agreements should be signed by all required parties prior to the beginning of the
contract agreement term. This would necessitate their filing with the Comptroller near the
beginning of their term thereby making the information readily available to the General
Assembly, unsuccessful bidders, and the general public. In addition, failure to have the
contract agreements signed before the beginning of the contract period does not bind the service
provider for compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and rules. (Finding Code
Number 06-19)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department implement procedures to ensure contracts arc signed before
the beginning date as set forth in the contract agreements.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department has made significant improvements to ensure
contracts are processed in accordance with the applicable contract rules and regulations.
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FINDING 06-20 (Standardized Procedures for Separated Employees Not Being
Followed)

The Department was not following the established standardized procedures when employees
leave ecmployment with the Departmient.

When an employee leaves the Department, the employee’s supervisor is generally responsible
for the completion of form DOC 0151 to ensure that all Department property has been returned.
During our examination period, we noted the Department had cstablished a standardized
procedure, Administrative Directive 01.02.155, “Procedure for Transfer or Separation of an
Employee” and a formal checklist to ensure all issues affecting separated employees had been
addressed. We tested 10 employees who had separated, noting the checklist was not completed
for 4 employees and the Business Administrator did not sign and date the checklist for 2
employees. During FY05 and FY06, 737 and 553 employees, respectively, left employment with
the Department.

The Department’s Administrative Directive 01.02.155 (Procedures for Transfer or Separation of
an Employee) states, “ All employees shall be advised of and provided access to this directive 1o
ensure appropriate actions arc completed when an employee is separating from the Department
or transferring within the Department for any reason. Upon notification of separation or
transfer, the appropriate Supervisor shall notify the Unit Manager who shall notify the
Personnel Office. The Personnel Office shall: a.} Notify the Business Administrator; b.) Ensure
all personnel paperwork is processed; and c.) Initiate and forward the Employee Transfer or
Exit Checklist, form DOC 0151, to the Unit Manager.”

Not following established standardized procedures at the time of employee separation exposes
the Department to the potential for State property not being returned and issues related to their
separation not being addressed.

Department officials stated the checklist was not completed or signed due to oversights and
Errors.

Ensuring these procedures are followed is especially important as the Department had
approximately 13,500 ecmployees. (Finding Code Number 06-20, 04-05)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department follow its established policies and procedures to ensure that all
Slate property is returned and other issues affecting scparated employees arc addressed.
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FINDING 06-20 (Standardized Procedures for Separated Employees Not Being
Followed) (Continued)

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will make every effort to ensure the procedures
for separated employees are followed. A reminder memo will be issued to staff to reinforce the
Department’s policy.
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FINDING 06-21 (Noncompliance With the Illinois Procurement Code)

The Department is not complying with the requirements of the IHlinois Procurement Code
(Code) with regard to purchases of items for resale in the Department’s commissaries at
Correctional Centers.

The Department maintains numerous commissary opcrations at Correctional Centers for
inmates and employees. Purchases are made from vendors for commoditics to be resold in the
commissaries, Total purchases made from vendors for rcsale in the commissaries were
approximately $25 million for fiscal year 2005 and fiscal year 2006. The commissaries
commodity purchases are made through non-appropriated locally held funds. As a result of
testing performed during our compliance examination we noted the following items:

s Purchases were not made by competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals
as required by the Code. The Correctional Centers receive catalogs from various
vendors and select products from the catalogs for resale in the commissary. In addition,
the commissary can contact multiple vendors by telephone and request bids.

¢ Terms and conditions for the purchases of goods from vendors for the commissarics
were not documented in the form of a contract as required by the Code. Upon selection
of a vendor an Order For Delivery (OFD) is prepared to document the purchase. OFD’s
are not utilized if the selected vendor uses pre-printed order forms or replenishes stock
at the commissary on a regular basis.

¢ None of the required procurement notices were published in the Illinois Procurement
Bulletin as required by the Code.

s The Department’'s Administrative Directive, 02.85.102, (Directive), which provides
guidance to employees on commissary purchase does not include all the requirements
as set forth in the Code. The Directive, effective November 1, 2000 notes that,
“Whenever possible, bids shall be requested in writing or by telephone from a minimum
of three vendors. The bids shall be documented and maintained on file in the
commissary.”

30 TLCS 500/20-5 of the Code sets forth that all State contracts, unless exempted, shall be
awarded by competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals. In addition, Section
20-80/a of the Code also notes, “all written determinations required under this Article shall be
placed in the contract file”. Article 20 also requires that public notices of the invitation for bids
or notice of the request for proposal be published in the Illinois Procurement Bulletin. The
Code applies to the Department regardless of the source of the funds with which the contracts
arc paid.
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FINDING 06-21 (Noncompliance With the Illinois Procurement Code) (Continued)

Department management indicated that they have requested from DCMS guidance and
direction on the commussary purchasing. Due to security necds and specialized products,
DCMS and the Department are working together to determine the proper way to complete the
purchases.

By not following the requirements of the Code the Department has limited the pool of available
vendors to only a few sclected vendors. In addition, the Department may be paying more for
commodities for their commissaries than they should. (Finding Code Number 06-21, 04-21)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the Department comply with the requirements of the Illinois Procurement
Code in making commissary purchases.

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE

Recommendation Accepted. The Department will continue to work with DCMS to define
competitive purchasing processes for the commissary operations that are consistent with the
State’s procurement policy while meeting the security and safety needs of the Department.
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06-22 (Failure to Implement Policy to Report State Housing Benefits as Income to
Employees as Required by Internal Revenue Regulations and State Statute)

The prior report noted that a policy to report the value of State housing benefits as income to
employees had not been implemented. (Finding Code Number 04-02, 02-03, 00-02, 99-08}

During the current engagement year, the Department implemented Administrative Directive
03.01.106 that addresses the costs assessed to employees living in State housing,.

06-23 (Department Appropriation Used to Pay Expenditures of Other State Agency)

It had been noted in the prior report that the Department had paid an invoice from its
appropriations for office and library supplics that was for material sent directly to the Illinois
Prisoner Review Board. (Finding Code Number (4-20)

During the current engagement, there were no payments of expenditures from Department
appropriations that related to other agencies noted during testing.

06-24 (No Representative on Interagency Review Committee as Required by State Statute)

The prior report noted that the Department did not designate a representative to be on the
mteragency review committee between the Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS)
and the Department. (Finding Code Number 04-12)

During the current period, a representative was designated to be on the interagency review
comnmittee.

06-25 (Failure to Timely Address Mental Health Services Standards as Required by State
Statute)

In the previous report it was identified the Department did not hold a public hearing, did not
submit task force recommendations to the General Assembly and did not inspect cach local jail
and juvenile detention facility.  (Finding Code Number 04-10, 02-16)

In late 2004, the hearings were held and Administrative Code changed. In early 2005, the new
standards were mailed to the jails and specialists initiated inspections.
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06-26 (Failure to Fill Mandated Positions)

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-2-5) requires the Department’s Adult and
Juvenile Divisions to be administered by Assistant Directors appointed by the Governor. One
of the Assistant Director positions (Juvenile Division) remains vacant and has not been filled for
nummerous years. (Finding Code Number 04-08)

Per Public Act 94-696, cffective June 1, 2006 the Department of Juvenile Justice was established.
Public Act 94-696 amended the Unified Code of Corrections and no longer requires the
Department of Corrections to have an Assistant Director for the Juvenile Division.

06-27 (Procedures Regarding Post Release Treatment Programs for Juvenile Offenders Not
Followed)

Previously, the Department did not follow its own ecstablished procedures regarding
background investigations and on-site inspections for post release treatment programs for
juvenile offenders. (Finding Code Number 04-14)

The Department currently does not contract with any secure residential youth care facilities to
provide post releasc treatment programs,

06-28 (The Department Failed to Notify the Applicable County State’s Attorney within 14
days of the Settlement, Verdict or Judgment)

In the previous report, the Department did not notify the applicable County State’s Attorney, of
the verdict or judgment in excess of $500 against the Department, within 14 days of a settlement
(Finding Code Number 04-17)

During the current engagement there were no exceptions noted in testing verdicls and
judgements.

06-29 (Failure to Provide Notification of Release of Any Person from the Department’s
Juvenile Division)

In the prior ycar, the Department did not provide written notifications of the release of persons
from the Department’s Juvenile Division as required by the Unified Code of Corrections (Code).
(Finding Code Number 04-09)

The Department provided all required notifications during the current year for juveniles within
our sample.

23,



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION
PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED
For the two years ended June 30, 2006

06-30 (Department Could Not Provide Documentation of all Individuals Who Were
Consensually and Non-Consensually Transferred to the Department of Human
Services)

In the prior year, the Department was unable to provide a listing of individuals who were
consensually or non-consensually transferred to the Department of Human Services.  Due to
this we were unable to test if the Department was in compliance with providing the required
notifications. (Finding Code Number 04-15)

The Department was able to provide a listing of individuals who were transferred to the
Department of Human Services. For our sample sclected, all had the required notifications.

06-31 (Failure to Provide Required Notification of the Placement of Persons into Adult
Transition Centers)

In the prior examination, the Department did not provide the required written notification of
the placement of persons into work and day release facilities (Transition Centers) as required by
the Unified Code of Corrections. (Finding Code Number 04-13)

During the current examination period, for the sample selected, all of the required written
notifications were obtained.

06-32 (Commissary Operations Not in Compliance with the Unified Code of Corrections)

In the prior examination, the Department was not transferring the slatutorily mandated
amounts to the benefit funds and was not always paying the appropriate employees from
commissary operation proceeds. (Finding Code Number 04-19)

During the current examination it was noted the Department was transferring the proper
amounts and had implemented a process to identify and pay employees working in the
commissaries from commissary proceeds.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT
SUMMARY

The audit of the accompanying basic financial statements of the State of IHinois, Department of
Corrections was performed by Crowe Chizek and Company LLC.

Based on their audit, the auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the Department’s basic
financial statements.
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Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Memibeer Horwath nternational

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable William G. Holland
Auditor General
State of Illinois

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying
financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections basic
financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the State of Minois, Department of Corrections’ management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Working Capital Revolving Fund (Correctional Industries), which
represents 100 percent of the assets and revenues of the Proprietary fund and 1.6 percent and 12.25
percent, respectively, of the net assets and changes in net assets of the governmental activities.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
fumished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for Correctional
Industries, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a fest
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements of the State of lllinois, Department of
Corrections are intended to present the financial position and changes in the financial position
of only that portion of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State that is attributable 10 the transactions of the State of Illinois,
Department of Corrections. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial
position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 2006, and its changes in financial position for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
reforred o above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the governmental
activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Slate of Minois,
Department of Corrections, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America,

In accordance with Goverinnient Anditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 26,
2007, on our consideration ol the State of [Minois, Department of Corrections” internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of ils compliance wilh cortain provisions of laws, regulﬂtinns,
contracls, grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our lesting of internal controls over financial reporting and compliance and the resualls of that
testing, and not to provide an opmion on the internal controls over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report 1s an integral part of an andit performed in accordance with Gozvernment
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the resulls of
our audit.

The Department has not presented a management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary
comparison information for any of its funds that accounting principles generally accepled in the
United States of America has determined 1s necessary to supplement, although not required to be
part of, the basic financial statements,

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statement thal
collectively comnpromise the State of [llinois, Department of Corrections” basic financial statements,
The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the Table of Contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, 15 fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Commussion, the Governor, the Comptroller, and Department
management, and 1s not mtended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

st ok Gadems (CC.

rowe Chivek Company LLC

Oak Brook, Ninois
February 26, 2007




State of lllinois
Department of Corrections

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Unexpended appropriations 3 80,508
Cash equity with State Treasurer 5,698
Cash and cash equivalents 8,778
Receivables, neat:
Intergovernmental 644
Other 340
Due from other State funds 5,588
Inventories 21,214
Prepaid expenses 8
Capital assets not being depreciated 72,184
Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,143,787
Total assets 1,339,349
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 86,080
Due to Department fiduciary funds 749
Due to other State funds 4,734
Deferred revenue 813
Long term obligations:
Due within one year 4,760
Bue subsequent to one year 85,296
Total liabilities 182,232
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,208,510
Unrestricted net assets {51,393)
Total net assets 3 1,157,117

The accompanying notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement. 8
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State of lllinois
Department of Corrections

Balance Sheet -

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Unexpended appropriations
Cash equity with State Treasurer
Cash and cash equivalents
Intergovernmental receivables, net
Other receivables, net
Due from other Depariment funds
Due from other State funds
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites
Due to Depariment fiduciary funds
Due to other Department funds
Due to other Siate funds
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Reserved for:
Inventories
Unreserved, undesignated
General fund
Special revenue funds

Total fund balances (deficits)
Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Total
General Nonmajor Governmental
Fund funds Funds
$ 80,508 3 - 3 80,508
- 4,321 4,321
5 8773 8,778
- 613 613
- 20 20
- 6,782 6,782
- 2,070 2070
11.070 1.867 12,837
3 41,583 $ 24,446 B 116,029
$ 78,521 $ 5,069 % 83,590
584 3 b87
2,012 6,746 8,758
21 4,383 4,404
- 613 613
81,138 16,814 97,952
11,070 1,867 12,937
(625) - {625)
- 5,765 5,765
10,445 7,632 18,077
% 91,583 3 24446 $ 116,029




State of lllinecis
Department of Corrections
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund halances-governmental funds $ 18,077

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmantal activities are not financial
resources and tharefore are not reported in the funds. 1,209,074

Internal service funds are used to charge costs of certain

activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the

internal service funds are reported as governmental aclivities

in the Statement of Net Assets, 18,566

Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Net Assets do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as liabilittes in governmental funds. These
activilies consist of:

Capital lease obligations {7,459)
Compensated absences (81,141)
(88,600}
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,157,117

The accompanying notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement. 61



State of lllinois
Department of Corrections

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006 {Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Nenmajor Governmental
General Fund funds Funds
REVENUES
Federal government % - $ 17182 5 17,182
Other charges for services 139 37,164 37,303
Interest and other investment income - 111 111
Other 1 16,945 16,846
Total revenues 140 71,402 71,542
EXPENDITURES
Public protection and justice 1,158,225 64,186 1,222 411
Debt service - principal 460 - 480
Debt service - interest 684 - 684
Capital outlays 1,316 - 1,318
Total expenditures 1,160,686 64,186 1,224,871
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
ovar {(under) expenditures (1,160,545) 7.216 (1,153,329}
OTHER SQURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Appropriations from State resources 1,173,278 - 1,173,278
Lapsed appropriations (3,218) - {3.218)
Receipts collected and transmitted to State Treasury (195) - {195)
Transfers-in - 10,873 10,873
Transfers-out {3,359) (14.958) (18,317)
Proceeds from capital lease financing 212 - 212
Nat other sources (uses) of
financial resources 1,166,718 {4,085) 1,162,633
Net change in fund balances 6,173 3,131 9,304
Fund balances, July 1, 2005 3624 4,439 8,063
Increase for changes in inventories 648 62 710
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2006 $ 10,445 $ 7,632 $ 18,077

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of lllinois
Department of Corrections
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Govarnmental Funds to Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
{Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances 5 9,304
Change in inventories 710
10,014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Staterment of
Activities are different because:

Govermnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities repart
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. This is the
amount by which depreciation in the current period exceaded capital outiays. (38,705)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-terrn liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 460

Some capital additions were financed through other financing arrangements. In governmental
funds these other financing arrangements are considered a source of financing, but in the
Statement of Net Assets, the lease obligation is reported as a liability. (212)

Some capital assets were transferred in from other State agencies and therefore, were
received as no cost. 2472

Internat service funds are used to charge to costs of cerlain activities to individual funds.
The net revenue of the internal service funds is reported as governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities. (4,539)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds, (818)

Proceeds from sales of capital assets are reporied in the governmental funds. However,
in the Slatement of Activities, the book value of capital assets which are sold or scrapped
are also reported. This is the book value of capital assets which were sold or scrapped. (265)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmeantal funds.
Below are such activities.

Increase in compensated absences obligation {4,950}
Change in net assets of governmental activities % {37,043}

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 63



State of Illlinois
Department of Corrections

Statement of Net Assets -
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash equity with State Treasurer
Receivables, net:

Intergovernmentat

Other
Due from other Department funds
Due from other State funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other Department fiduciary funds
Due to other Department funds
Due to other State funds
Current portion of long-term obligations
Total current liabilities

Neoncurrent portion of long-term obligations
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an imtegral part of this statement.

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service Fund

Working Capital
Revolving Fund

% 1,277

31
320
1,987
3,518
8,977
8

16,118

49
6,848

23,015

2,490
162
11
330
228

3,221

1,228

4449

5,805
11,671

g 18,566
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State of lllinois
Department of Corrections

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006 {(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Other revenues
Inferest expense
Other expenses
Loss hefore transfers
Transfers-out
Net loss

Net assets, July 1, 2005

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2006

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service Fund

Working Capital
Revolving Fund

3 37,120

37,120

30,636
5,794
1,570

38,000

(880)

387

M
(140)

(634)

(3.905)

(4,539)

23,105

3 18,566
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State of lllinois

Department of Corrections
Statement of Cash Flows -
Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service Fund
Working Capital
Ravalving Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales and services to third parties 5 11,422

Cash received from sales and services to other State funds 25716

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (19,948)

Cash payments to employees for services {14,991)

Cash payments for other operating activities {254)
Net ¢ash provided by operating activities 1,847

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING AGTIVITIES
Transfers-out {3,805)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (927)
Principal paid on capital debt (10}
Interest paid on capital debt (1)
Other capital and financing activities 387
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (551}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2.509}
Cash equity with State Treasurer. Juiy 1, 2005 3,786
CASH EQUITY WITH STATE TREASURER, JUNE 30, 2006 b 1,277

Reconciliation of operating income to net

cash provided by oparating activities:
QPERATING LOSS $ (880
Adjustments to reconcile aperating income {loss)

to net cash provided {(used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,670
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in intergovernmental receivables 25
Decrease in other receivable 204
Increase in due from other State funds (211}
Decrease in inventory 581
Decrease in prepaid expenses 9
Increase in accounts payable and acerued liabilities 199
Increase in due to other State funds 324
Increase in other liabilities 116
Total adjustments 2.827
NET CASH PROVIDED BY QPERATING ACTIVITIES [ 1,947
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Gain (loss} on sale of property and equipment $ {24)
Transfer of capital assets, net of related debd, toffrom other State funds {108)
Tatal noncash investing, capital and financing activities 3 (133)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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State of llinois
Department of Corrections

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agency Fund
DOC
Resident's
Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,495
Due from other Department funds 749
Other receivables 2
Total assets 5 4,246
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities % 101
Other liabilities 4,145
Total liabilities $ 4,246

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
67
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2006

Organization

The Department of Corrections (the Department) is a part of the executive branch of government of
the State of llinois (State) and operates under the authority of and review by the [llinois General
Assembly. The Department operates under a budget approved by the General Assembly in which
resources primarily from the General Revenue Fund, the Corrections Reimbursement Fund and the
Waorking Capital Revolving Fund are appropriated for the use of the Department. Activities of the
[Jepartment are subject to the authority of the Office of the Governor, the State’s chicf exeeutive
officer, and other departments of the exceutive and legislative branches of government (such as the
Department of Central Management Services, the Governor's Offiee of Management and Budget, the
State Treasurer’s Office, and the State Comptrotler’s Office) as defined by the Illinois General
Assembly. Al funds appropriated to the Department and all other cash received are under the
custody and control of the State Treasurer, with the exception ofthe DOC Commissary Fund, DOC
Resident’s and Employee’s Benefit Fund and DOC Resident’™s Trust Fund, which are locally held
funds, and varigus petty cash funds, which are under the direct control of the Department.

The Department was created by the 76" General Assembly and became operational on January 1, 1970.
The Department has the authority to carry out certain duties and to execute certain responsibilities
within the following areas:

s The care, custody, treatment and rehabilitation of persons committed by the courts of the
State of [1linois;

s The maintenance and administration of all State correctional institutions and facilities under
its control;

« The cstablishment of new institutions and facilities:

s+ The development of a system of supervision and guidance of committed persons in the
community;

s The development of standards and programs for better correctional services in the State.

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicics

The financial statements of the department have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepled in the United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by he
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). To facilitate the understanding of data included
in the financial statements, summarized below are significant accounting policies.

(2} Financial Reporting Entity
As defined by GAAP, the financial reporting entity consists of a primary government, as well as
its component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of

the primary povernment are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as:

1} Appeintment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and e¢ither (a) the
primary government’s ability to impose its will, or (b) the possihility that the component
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Nates to Financial Statements

June 30, 2006

unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary
government; or

2y Fiscal dependency on the primary government.

Rased upon the required criteria, the Department has no component units and is not a
component unit of any other entity. However, hecause the Department is not legally separate
from the State of lllinois, the financial statements of the Department are included in the financial
statements of the State of [lingis. The State of Iltinois’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
may be obtained by writing to the State Comptroller’s Office, Financial Reporting Department,
325 West Adams Street, Springfield, lllinois, 62704-1871,

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections, are intended to
present the financial position, and the changes in financial position of only that portion of the
governmental activities, each major fund, and the agprepate remaining fund information of the
State of Illinois that is attributable to the transactions of the Department. They do not purport
te, and do not, present fairly the Minancizl position of the State of Illinois as of June 30,2006, and
the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformily with accounting
principles generally acceptad in the United States of America,

Government-wide Statements. The government-wide statement of net assets and statement of
activities report the overall financial activity of the Department, excluding fiduciary activitics,
Eliminations have been made lo minimize the double-counting of internal activitics of the
Department.  Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of net assets presents the asscts and lahilities of the Department’s governmental
activities with the difference being rcported as net assets. The assets and liabilitics are
presented in order of their relative liquidity by class of asset or liability with liabilitics whose
average maturitics are greater than one year reported in two components- the amount due within
one year and the amount due in more than one year.

The statement of activities presents a comparison hetween direct expenses and program
revenues for the public protection and justice function of the Department’s governmental
activitics, Direet expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs
and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted 10 megting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues thal are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the
Department’s funds, including the Department’s fiduciary fund. Separate statements for each
fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - arc presented. The emphasis on fund
financial statements is on the major govermnmental fund displayed in a separate column.  All
remaining governmental and proprietary funds arc aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Notes to Financial Statements

Junc 30, 2006

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equally valuess. Nonoperating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
aclivities,

The Department administers the following major governmental fund (or portions thercof in the
case of shared funds— see note 2(d)) of the State:

General — This 5 (the State’s primary operating fund. [t accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, exeept those required to be accounted for in mother fund. The
sarvices which are administered by the Department and accounted for in the peneral fund
include, among others, public protection and justice. Certain resources obtained from federal
grants and used to support general governmental activities are accounted for in the General
Fund consistent with applicable legal requirements.

Additionally, the Department administers the following fund types:
Governmental Fund Types;

Special Revenune — These funds account for resources obtained from specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Special revenue
funds account for, among other things, federal grant programs, taxes levied with statutorily
defined distributions and other resources restricted as 1o purpose.

Proprietary Fund Types:

Internal Service — This fund accounts for revenues and expenses derived from goods or
services produced by factories, farms, and service programs charged to State agencies and
other entities.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Agency — This fund accounts for monies deposited by and on behalf of individual residents
for the personal use of the individual resident while they are in the care and custody of the
Depattment.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The govemment-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
ceonomie resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
tecorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time labilities arc incurred, regardless of
when the retated cash flow (akes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Depariment
gives (or receives) value without directly recciving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
intergovernmental grants. Revenue from grants, entitletnents, and similar items are recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Notes 1o Financial Statements

June 30, 2006

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modificd accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are hoth
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon cnough thercafler to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the State considers revenues 1o be available if they are colected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 1) principal and interest on formal debt issues,
such as bonds and capital leases, are recorded only when payment is due and 2) compensaied
absences and claims and judgments arc recorded when they are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources. Capilal asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-ierm debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other financing sources.

Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to acerual include interest and other charpes
for services. All other revenue sources are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are Tollowed in the govemment-wide and proprictary fund financial statements o the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The State also has the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The State has elected not ro follow subsequent private-sector guidance as 1t relaies to
the Department’s operations.

Shared Fund Presentation

The financial statement presentation for the General Fund represents only the portion of shared
funds that can be dircctly attributed to the operations of the Department. Financial stalerments
for total fund operations of the shared State funds are presented in the Staic of Hlinois®
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

In presenting these financial statements, certain unique accounts are used for the presentation of
shared funds. The following accounts are used in these financial statements to present the
Department’s portion of shared funds:

Inexpended Approprialions

This “asset™ account represents lapse period warrants issued between July and August
annually in accordance with the Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS)
records plus any liabilities relating to obligations re-appropriated to the subscquent fiscal
year,

Appropriations from State Resoures

This “other financing source™ account represents the final legally adopted appropriation
according to SAMS records. The amounts reported are net of any re-appropriations to
subsequent years and the difference between current and prior year habilities for re-
appropriated accounts, Re-appropriations reflect the State’s realignment of the budgetary
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needs 1o the subsequent year and avoid double counting a portion of the appropriation in
more than one fiscal year.

Lapsed Appropriations

Lapsed appropriations are the legally adopted appropriations less net warrants issued for the
14 month period from July to August of the following year and re-appropriations to
subsequent years according to SAMS records.

- | [repsmitted to State Trens

This “other financing use” account represents all cash receipts received during the fiscal
year from SAMS records.

Eliminations

Eliminations have been made in the povernmentwide statement of net assets to minimize the
“arossing-up” effect on assets and liabilities within the Department. As a result, amounts
reported in the funds as interdepartmental interfund receivables and payables have been
eliminated. Amounts reported in the funds as receivable from or payable to fidwiary funds have
been included in the statement of nel assets as receivable from and payable to external parties,
rather than as internal balances. Eliminations have also been made in the statement of activities
1o remave the “doubling-up™ elfect of interdepartmental internal service fund activity.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liguid investments readily convertible to cash
with original maturities of three months or less, Cash and cash equivalents also include cash on
hand, cash in banks, certificates of deposit, and money market accounts for locally held funds.

Inventories

[nventories, consisting primarily of raw materials, work m process, finished goods, operating
supplies, and unhatvested crops, are valued at cost, principally on the firstin, first-out (FIFQ)
method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
than when purchased.

Interfund Transactions

The Department has the following types of interfund transactions between Department funds
and funds of other State apencics:

Services provided and used sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for
a price approximating their extermnal exchange value, [nterfund services provided and used are
reported as revenues in scller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds.
Unpaid amounts are reported as interfund receivables and payables in the fund balance
sheets or fund statements of net assets,
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Reimbursements--repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed
fund.

Transfers—flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in
return and without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are
reported as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as other financhg
sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprictary funds, transiers are reported after
ronopetating revenues and expenses.

(i) Capital Assefs

G

Capital assels, which includes property, plant, equipment and livestock, are reported at cost or
cstimated historical cost based on appraisals. Contributed assets are reported at estimated fair
value at the time received. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.

Capitalization thresholds and the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated

Capitalization Useful Life

Capital Asset Catepory Threshold {in Y¢ars)
Land $100,000 N/A
Land Improvements 25,000 N/A
Site lmprovements 25,000 3-50
Buildings 100,000 10-60
Building Improvements 25,000 10-45
Equipment and Livestock 5,000 3-25

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated shsences reported in the governmentwide and proprictary fund
financial statements consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation and sick leave balances for
Department Employees. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, The
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for bath
employeas who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are
included. The liability has heen caleulated based on the employces’ current salary level and
includes salary related costs (e.g., social security and Medicare tax) .

Legislation that became effective January 1, 1998 capped the paid sick leave for all Statc

Employees’ Retirement System members at [ecember 31, 1997 Employees continue to acerue
twelve sick days per year, but will not receive monetary compensation for any additional time
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eamned after December 31, 1997, Sick days earned between 1984 and December3l, 1997 (with a
50% cash value) would only be used after all days with no cash value are depleted. Any sick
days eammed and unused after December 31, 1997 will be converted to service time for purposes
of calculating employee pension benefits.

Fund Balances

In the Tund Mnancial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legallyrestricted by outside parties for use
for specific purpose. Desighations of fund halances represent tentative State plans that are
subject to change.

Net Assety

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in o
companents as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, morigages, noles, or
other borrowings that arc attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Unrestricted — This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
*“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.,”

Use of Extimates

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period,  Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2006 the State adopted GASB Staternent No, 42, Accounting
and Finaneial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries which
established accounting and financial reporting standards for the impairment of apital assets.
There was no significant impact on the Department’s financial siatements as a result of adopting
this statement.

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2006 1the State adoptcd GASB Statement No, 47, Accounting
Jor Termination Benefits, which established accounting and financial reporting standards for
termination benefits. There was no significant impact on the Department’s financial statements
as a result of adopting this statement.
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(3) Deposits

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the Department’s deposits and investments Br funds
maintained in the State Treasury. The Department independently manages deposits and

investments maintained outside the State Treasury.

Deposits in the custody of the State Treasurer are pooted and invested with other State funds in
accordance with the Deposit of State Moneys Act of the 1llingis Compiled Statutes (15 ILCS
520/11). Funds held by the State Treasurer have not been categorized as to credit risk because
the Department does not own individual securitics. Detail on the nature of these deposits and
investments is available within the S1ate of [Hinois” Comprehensive Annual Financial Keport,

(4) Interfund Balances and Activity

(a) Balances Due to/from Other Funds

The following balances {(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2006 represent amounts due

from other Deparument and State of Illinois funds.

Due from
Other Other
Department State
Fund Funds Funds Deseription/Purpose

Nonmajor

governmental funds kS 6,782 5 2070  Due from other Department
funds for excess fund balances
and other State funds for
unreimbursed grant
cxpendilures,

Internal service fund Lys7 3,518 Duc from other Department
and other State funds for
purchases of services.

Fiduciary Fund 749 - Due from other Departrent
funds for reimbursement of
expenditures incurred.

£ 9,518 3 5,588
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The following balances {amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2006 represent amounts due 1o
other Department and State of Illinois funds.

Iuc to
Other Department
Department Other State Fidupeiary
Fund Funds Funds Funds Description/Purpose

Ciengral b 2,012 $ 21 $ 5484
Duc to Working Capital
Revolving Fond for purchases,
to other State funds to assist in
budget shorfalls, and w0
Bepartitnent fidociary funds for
renmbursements of expenses
ingurred.

Nonmajor

govemmental

tunds 6,746 4,383 3 Due to Depariment nonmajor

gavernmental funds tor exeess
fund balances, other State
funds for ungpent gram
proceads, and other
Department Hiduciary funds for
reimbursements of expenses
incurred

Internal scrvice

fund 11 330 162 Due to Departiment nonmajor
governmental funds, State
intermal service lunds for
oprating ¢xpense
reitnhurseiments, and
Department Hiduciary fund for
rgimbursement of expuenges
incutred.

5 R76% 5 473§ 749
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(b} Transfers to/fram Cther Fundy

Interfund transfers in (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 2006, were as
foilows:

‘I'ransfers in from

Other
Department
Fund Funly Deseription/Purpose
Nonmajor
governmental
funds 3 10,873 ‘I'ransfers from other Depanment funds
pursuant to statute of excess fund balances,
273

Interfund transfers oul (amounts expressed in thousands} for the year ended June 30, 2000, were as

follows:
Transfers out to
(Mher
Department Other State
Fund Funds Funds Description/Furpose
General ] - 5 3,359 Transfers to other State funds for deb
service payments,
Noamajor
governmental
funds 10,873 4085 Transfers W other Department funds
pursuant to slatute of excess fund
balances and to other Siate funds to assist
with S1ate budget shortfalls.
Intemnal service - 3,905 ‘Fransier to other State funds 10 assist
funds with State budget shortfalls.
$ 10,473 § 11349
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Capital asset activity {amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 20006 was as

faltows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Comstruction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Site improvements
Building and building improvements
Lquipment

Total capital asscts
being depreciated

[ 435 avcumulated depreciation:
Sile improvemenls
Building and building improvements
Eouimment

Total accumulaied
depreciation

‘'otal capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental activity
capital asscts, net

Balance Nelt Ralanee
July 1, 2005 _Additions _Deletions  __Tranfers June 30, 2006
5 069,536 % - 3 - % 25 3 64,561

2614 4% 40 : 2,621
72,150 49 40 25 72,1584
94,513 - - 582 95,095

1,634,204 41 5 2,770 1,633,009

86,403 2168 1,872 (142) 06558
1821122 2208 1,877 3,209 1 524,662
48,953 3,624 - 10 52,587
507,816 33,661 5 R99 342371
82,667 4306 LOJE (38} 85917
639436 4],59] 023 871 680875

LI81.686 {36.383) 254 2338 1,143,787
$ 1,253 816 933 b 894 § 2363 & 1.2j3971

Depreciation expense for governmental activities (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year
ended June 30, 2006 was charged as follows:

Public protection and justice

$_ 41301
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{6) Long-Term Obligations
(a) Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30,2006
were a follows:

Balance Ealance Amounts
July 1, June 30, Due Wirhin
2005 Additions Deletions 2006 One Year

Governmenlal activities:

Compensated absences $ 77,529 % 62,351 % 57,285 §82.595 % 4,283
Capital lease obligations 7,719 212 470 7461 477
Total § H5.24% by 62,563 § 57,755 $90,056 % 4,760

Compensated absences have been liquidated by the applicable governmental funds that aceount for
the salaries and wages of the related employees.

(h) Capital lease obligations

The Department leases office facilitics and cquipment with a historical cost and accumulated
depreciation of $9.373 and $3.329 millior, respectively, under capital lease arangements. Although
lease terms vary, certain leases are renewable subject to appropriation by the General Assembly. If
rencwal is reasonably assured, leases requiring appropriation by the General Assembly are
considered non-cancelable leases for financial reporting.  Future minimum lease payments (amounts
expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 b 477 b 648 § 1,125
2008 463 603 1,066
2009 459 563 1,022
2010 464 522 986
2011 503 475 981

2012-2016 3,304 1600 4,904
2012-2016 1,791 171 1,962

¥ 7461 F 4585 $ 12,046
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Pension Plan

Substantially all of the Department's full-time employees who are not eligible for participation in
another stale-sponsored retirement plan participate in the State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS),
which is a pension trust fund in the State of Illinois reporting entity. The SERS is a single-employer
defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS) in which Statc employees participate,
except those covered by the State Universities, Teachers’, General Assembly, and Judges™ Retirement
Systems. The financial position and results of operations of the SERS for fiscal year 2006 are included
in the State of Nlinois” Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) forthe year ended June 30,
2006. The SERS issues a separate CAFR that may be obtained by writing to the SERS, 2101 South
Veterans Parkway, Springfield, [llinois, 62794-9255.

A summary of SERS benefit provisions, changes in bencfit provisions, employee eligibility
requirernents ingluding eligibility for vesting, and the authority under which benefit provisions are
established are included as an integral part of the SERS” CAFR. Also included is a discussion of
employer and employee obligations to contibute and the authority under which those obligations are
established.

The Department pays employer retitement contributions hased upon an actuarially determined
percentage of their payralls.  For fscal year 2006, the employer contribution rate was 7.792%.
Effective for pay periods beginning after December 31, 1991, the State opted to pay the employec
portion of retirement for most State agencies (including the Department) with eroployees covered by
the State Employees’ and Teachers™ Retirement Systems. However, effective with the fiscal year 2006
budget, the State opted to stop paying the portion or a part of the portion of retirement for many State
agencies (including the Dcepartment) for certain classes of employees covered by the State
Froployces” and Teachers” Retirement Systems. The pickup, when applicable, is subject to sufficient
annual appropriations and those employees covered may vary across employee groups and Statc
agencies.

The Department’s school district participates in the Teachers™ Retirement System of the State of
Nlinois (TRS). TRS is a costsharing multiple-emplover defined benefit pension plan that was created
by the Illinois legislature for the benefit of 1llinots public school teachers emploved outside the cily of
Chicago. The Hlinois Pension Code outlines the benefit provisions of TRS, and amendments to the
plan can be made only by legislative action with the Govemeor’s approval. The State of Hlinois
maintains primary responsibility for the funding of the plan, but contribution from participating
employers and members are alse required, The TRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the System’s
administration.

TRS members include all active nonannuitants who are emploved by a TRScovered cmployer to
provide services for which teacher centification is required. Active TRS members arc required to
contribute Y.4 percent of their creditable earnings. These contributions, which may be paid on behalf
of employees by the employer, are submitted 1o TRS by the employer.  In addition, virtually all
members pay a 4/5 of 1 percent contribution (o the Teachers Health Insurance Security Fund, a
separate fund in the State Treasury that is not a part of this retirement plan.

The State of Illinois makes contributions directly to TRS on behalf of the district’s TRScovered
employees.
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TRS financial information, an explanation of TRS™ benefits, and descriptions of member, employer and
state funding requirements ean be found in the TRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
year ended June 30, 2006, The report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers™ retirement System
of the State of Illinois, P.O. Box 19253, 2815 West Washinglon Street, Springfield L 627949253,

Post-cmployment Benefits

The State provides health, dental, and life insurance benefits for certain retinces and their dependents.
Substantially all State employees become eligible for postemployment benefits if they eventually
become annuitants of one of the State sponsored pension plans. Health and dental benefits include
basic benefits for annuitants under the Staic’s self-insurance plan and insurance contracts currently in
force. Life insurance benefits are limited 1w 35,000 per annuitant age 60 and older. The (otal cost of
health, dental, and life insurance benefits of all members, including postarployment health, dental,
and life insurance henefits, is recognized as an expenditure for the State in the [llinois Comprshensive
Annual Financial Report. The total costs incurred for health, dental, and life insurance benefits are
not separated by Department for annuitants and their dependents nor active employees and their
dependents.

Risk Management
The Department is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; errors and omissions: workers compensation and natural disasiers, The State
retaing the risk of loss (ie self insured) for these risks.

Fund Deficits
The Department of Corrections Reimbursement and DOC Commissary Fund nopmajor governmental

funds had deficit fund balances (amounts expressed in thousands) of 5641 and §1,363, respectively, at
June 30, 2006. These deficits will be eliminated by future recognition of unavailable revenues.

Commitments and Contingencies

(4} Operating leases
The Department leases office facilities and cquipment, under the terms of noncancelable
operating lease agreements that requires the Department to make minimum lease payments plus

pay a pro rata share of certain operating costs. Rent expense under operating leasces (amount
expressed in thousands) was $13,732 for the year ended June 30, 2006,
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The following is a schedule of fuure minimum lease payments under the operating lease
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Amount
2007 5 324
200% 242
2000 127

§ 697

(&) Federal Funding

{c)

The Department receives federal grants which are subject to review and audit by federal grantar
agencies. Certain costs could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms
of the grants. At June 30, 2006, there were no material questioned costs that have not been
resolved with the federal awarding agencies. However, questioned costs could still be identified
during audits 1o be conducted in the future. Management of the Deparument believes there will
be no material adjustments to the federal grants and, aceordingly, has not recorded a provision
for possible repayment.

Lirigation
The Departrnent is routingly involved in a number of legal proceedings and claims that cover a
wide range of matiers, In the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters is not

expected 10 have any material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of
the Department.
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ASSETS
Cash equity with State Treasurer
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net;
Intergovernmental
Other
Due from other Department funds
Due from other State funds
Inventories
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other Department fiduciary funds
Due to other Department funds
Due to other State funds
Deferred Revenues
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Reserved for inventories
LUnreserved, unrestricted

Tetal fund balances {deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

Special Revenue

DOC
Residents’
Department of and
Corrections DoC Employees’
Reimbursement  Commissary Benefit Total
4,321 $ - % - % 4,321
647 4,259 3,867 8,773
613 - - 613
- 15 5 20
479 - 6,303 6,782
2,070 - - 2.070
- 1,867 - 1,867
8,130 $ 6,141 $ 10,175 24446
3,775 $ 960 5 334 5 5,069
- - 3 3
- 6,746 - 6,746
4,383 - - 4,383
613 - - 613
8,771 7.706 337 16,814
- 1,867 - 1,867
{641} (3.432) 9,838 5,765
{641) {1,565) 9,838 7,632
8.130 $ 8,141 b 10,175 $ 24,446
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Department of Corrections

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Non-major Governmental Funds
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Special Revenue

Department of

DOC Residents’

Corrections DOC and Employees'
Reimbursement Commissary Benefit Total
REVENUES
Federal government $ 17,182 $ - % - ) 17 182
Interest and other investment income - 24 87 111
Other revenues 16,023 13 909 16,945
Other charges for services 2,710 34,454 - 37,164
Total revenues 35,915 34,491 996 71,402
EXPENDITURES
Publis protection and justice 34,751 25,245 4,190 64,186
Total expenditures 34,751 25,245 4,190 64,186
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,164 9,246 (3,194) 7,216
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Transfers-in 4,595 - 6,278 10,873
Transfers-out {4,085) {10.873) - {14,958)
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources 510 (10,873) 6,278 {4,085)
Net change in fund balances 1,674 {1,627) 3,084 3,131
Fund balances {deficils), July 1, 2005 (2,315) - 6,754 4,439
Increase for changes in inventories - 62 - 62
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 2006 § (641) % (1,565) &% 0,838 % 7.632
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Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006 (Expressed in Thousands}

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2005 Additions Deletions June 30, 2006
DOC Resident’s Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2964 % 531 $ - % 3,495
Due from other Department funds 2,020 - 1,271 744
Other receivables 2 - - 2
Total assets 3 4986 5 531 $ 1,271 $ 4,248
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 5 113 % - % 12 % 101
Other liabilities 4,873 - 728 4,145
Total liabilities % 4,986 % - ¥ 740 $ 4,246
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR STATE COMPLIANCE PURPOSES
SUMMARY

Supplementary Information for State Compliance Purposes presented in this section of the
report includes the following:

* Fiscal Schedules and Analysis:
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Fiscal Year 2006
Fiscal Year 2005
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances
Fourteen Months Ended August 31, 2006
Fourteen Months Ended August 31, 2005
Comparative Schedule of Net Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances
Schedule of Efficiency Initiative Payments
Schedule of Changes in State Property
Fiscal Year 2006
Fiscal Year 2005
Comparative Schedule of Cash Receipts and Reconciliation of Department Receipts to
Deposits Recorded by the Comptroller
Fund 001
Fund 523
Analysis of Significant Variations in Expenditures
Analysis of Sigruficant Variations in Receipts
Analysis of Significant Lapse Period Spending
Analysis of Accounts Receivable
State Housing Benefits
Publications

* Analysis of Operations
Department Functions and Planning Program
Average Number of Employees
Analysis of Employee Overtime (Unaudited)
Annual Cost Statistics (Unaudited)
Notes to Annual Cost Statistics (Unaudited)
Annual Performance Statistics - School District #428 (Unaudited)
Participating Educational Institutions - School District #428 (Unaudited)
Emergency Purchases
Memorandum of Understanding (Unaudited)
1YC Rushville and Thomson
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita Cost Reporting (Unaudited)
Service Efforts and Accomplishments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR STATE COMPLIANCE PURPOSES
SUMMARY

The auditors” report that covers the Supplementary Information for State Compliance Purposes
presented in the Compliance Report Section states that it had been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in the anditors” opinion,
except for that portion marked “unaudited,” on which they express no opinion, it is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRLECTIONS
SCHENULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAT, AWARIS

Year Ended June 30, 2006
{Lxpressed in Thouwsands)

CEDA Pass-Through Federal
Federal Grantor\Pass-Through Grantor\ Program Tille Number  CGrantor Project Number Expenditures
U5 Department of Agricualture:
Pass-through programs from e Nlinois Slate Board of Edacation:
School Breakfast Program 10,553 422() 798
Natioral Schoal Luneh Program 10,553 2140 L5310
Total U5, Department of Agricullure o 2B
U.5. Department of Justice:
IYecct programs:
Prisoner Reentry hnitialivee 16,2002 n/a A9
Stale Criminal Alien Assistance Program 6 n/a _ 1,731
Total direct programs _ 522
Fass-through programes from e Hlines Criminal Justice Information Authority:
Juvenile Accountability Tncentive Block Cranl 16.523 SO0086, S0T086 252
Project Sale MNeighborhomds 16,609 nfa b
Crimer Victun Assistance 16.675 201014, 201055 70
By e Formila Crant Program 16,579 A0D04S, 3945, 4946, 4995 L 156
A995, 0 02, 499908
Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth in Sentencing Incentive Granls 16,386 3607, 310 5,854
Violence Against Women Fornula Grants 16.5484 OHE 1 72
Fesidential Substance Abuse Troatmoent for State Prisonoers 16.393 DO0003, Y00007, SO000Y, 9701 2,009
G705, URUL, G801, YRD2, Y81 |
G2, SRI03, YO07, DR, 9012
Pass-thraugh prograns [rom the Hlinois Departiment of I luinan Services:
Juvenile Jushive and Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to Slales 1035401 IOSU0 129
Temporary Assislance tor Needy Families 93,558 nga oy
Tolal pass-througl programs 11,889
Total U, Depariment of Justice _17.u3
U.5. Department of Labor
[Pagss-through programs rom the Hlinows Stale Board of Education:
WILA Incentive Granls - Section 303 Crants 1o Slates 17261 n/a e
Todal U8, Department of Labor 219
U.5. Department of Education;
Lirect programs:
Crrands bo States for incarcerated Youth Offenders LAY n/a
Total direet programs
Pass-lhrough programs trom the Hlincis Community Collepe Board:
Adull Fducation - Sale Crrant Program ah002 H2BAA 72
Pass-thirough programs from the Hlinois State Board of Education:
Citle 1 Program for Neglocted and Delinguent Children 54013 4315 1,949
S]')l'l“iil] Fducation - Grants Lo Stales &1027 4 1,015
YVocational Lducalion - Basic Crants (o Slates RebAMB 4740 260
Safeand Drug-lree Schogls 81180 1932 3
Innovation Bducation Program Stralegics B-h 298 4100 +
lmproving Teacher Qualily Stale Crants B1.007 R 2
Total Pass through proyeams e
Tutal U.S. Department of Education +.337
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEMARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
SCHEDULE OF EXFENDTTURES QF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2006
(Ixpressed in Thousands)

CFRA T'ass-Through Federal
lederal Grantor\Pass-Through Grantor\Program Title Number Granlor Projoecl Number Lxpenditures
LS, Lxepartment of Health and Human Service:
Pass-threngh progras trony the Hineds Departient of Healtheare and Family Serviees:
State Children's Insurance I’mgram 3,707 n/a by 2
Medical Assistance Frogram 93,778 n/a 182
Tolai U5, Department of Health and Human Service 154
Total Lxpenditures of Federal Awards 5 LI



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DFEPARTMENT QF CORRECTIONS
SCHEDULL OF EXPENDITURLS OF FERLERAL AWARDS
Year indoed June 30, 2005
{Expressed in Thousands)

(FDA Pass-Through Federal
Pederal Grantor\Pass-Threugh Grantor\'rogram Title Nuwmber  Grantor Uroject Number Expendilures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Pass-through programs feon the Hlinois Stade Board of Lducation:
School Broakbast Proprn 10).553 1220
MNational School Lunch Progrram [{.555 A210
Total U5, Departnient of Agriculture
National Telecommunications and [nformation Administration, Department
of Commerce:
Direct progrims;
Telocommunications and information Infrastructure Assistance Projram {1,552 17-60-101008 1
Total Natienal Telecommunications and Information Administration, Depariment
of Cammceree =
U.S. Department of Justice:
Lirect programs:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program Ha6l6 n/a 275
Total direct propreans o
Pass-through programs from the Hlinois Criminal Justice Informalion Authorily:
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Crant 106,523 SUNURG, 301086 b4
Project Safe Neyghborhoods 16609 n/a 29
Crime Victm Assistance 100,375 200014, 201033 75
Byroe Formula Grant Program 16,579 200045, 4945, 4uda, 4990 2,255
JU5, 499902, 1999.08
Violent Ofender Inearceration g Treuth in Sentencing ncenlive Cirants 16,5356 607, 3610 (3,519
Violenee Apainst Waonen Formula Grants 10,588 Lall 34
Fosidential Substanee Abuse Treatiment for State Prisoners 16,593 SODDOG, QO00N7, SOD0OY, 9701 1,480
9705, 9800, B8O, 9802, 941
GUOZ, BEG, V07, G0, 9] 2
Pass-through programs from the Hineis Department of Hurman Services:
Juvemile fustice and Delinguency Prevention - Allocation 1o Stales 16,540 316800 155
Temperary Assislanee for Needy Familics 3,554 n/a 242
Fotal pass-through programs 13,053
Total US. Department of Justice 13,324

U.5. Department of Labor:
Pavs-through programs from the Hlineis State Board of Bducation:
WIA Youth Opportunity (YQOO) 17,263 4777
WIA Incentive CGrants - Section 503 Crants to States 17.201 i/a
‘Total U.S. Deparlment of Labor

U5, Department of Education:
Direct programs:
Granls fo Slales for lncarcerated Youth Orfonders 81.331 1/ a

Total direet programs

Pagss through programs from the Hlinois Community College Board;
Adult Education - State Grant Frogram 51002 J2BAN

3
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRE

SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURLS QF FEIDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2005

{Fxpressed in Thousands)

CIDA Pass-Through Federal
Federal Grantor\Pass-Through Grantor\'rogram Title MNumbor Crrantor Project Number Expendilures
Pass-through programs from the lineis State Board ol Education:
itk [ Program tor Neglecled and Delinguent Children 84013 4315 H 2,285
Special Education - Grants to States §1.027 1620 1,165
Voatiomal Edueation - Basic Grants Lo Slates L8 VAT 4740 234
Innovation Educabion Program Stratepies &1.298 1108 11
Special Fducation - State Propram Improvenent Grants for Children with Disabilition 84,323 4361 45
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants BE307 49130 ..
Total Fass-through programs ~ 109
Total U.S. Department of Education 4,629
U.5. Department of Health and Human Service:
Pass-through programs from the Minois Deparlment of Public Add:
LY Prevention Activitios - Health Trepartmuent Based 93940 TEOSER 179
Tatal U.S. Depactment of Health and [uman Service 179

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

5.7
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1- GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the federal award
programs of the [llinois Department of Corrections. The reporting entity for the Department is
defined in the footnotes to the Department’s financial statements. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the expenditure of awards received directly from
Federal agencies and awards passed through other State and local agencies.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was prepared for State compliance purposes
only. A separate single audit of the Illinois Department of Corrections was not conducted. A
separate single audit of the entire State of Illinois {(which includes the Illinois Department of
Corrections) was performed and released under separate cover.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Expenditurcs of Federal Awards has been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America using the modified
accrual basis of accounting as prescribed in pronouncements issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The revenues and expenditures for all of the Department's
federal awards are accounted for in the Corrections Reimbursement Fund - 523.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COSTS
The Department does not claim indirect cost reimbursements for any of its federal award

programs. Consequently, the Department does not have an indirect cost ralc established for
allocating indirect costs to federal award programs.

92.



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 4 - DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

The following is a brief description of the significant programs included in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards schedule.

U. S Department of Agriculture- Pass through program from the Illinois State Board of

Education

1.

School Breakfast Program CFDA #10.553 and National School Lunch Program CFDA
#10.555 - These programs are administered through the Illinois State Board of
Education. The Department is reimbursed for a portion of the cost of meals prepared for
the juveniles housed at Illinois Youth Centers and inmates under the age of 21 in adult
facilities participating in cducational programs.

Telecommunications and Information Infrastructure Assistance Program CFDA #11.552 -
PACT - Parent and Children Together is a grant-funded program that provides female
offenders an opportunity to interact with their children via videoconferencing,

U. 5. Department of [ustice

1.

Prisoner Reentry Initiative CFIDA #16.202 - The objective is to assist jurisdictions in facing
the challenges presented by the return of offenders from prison to the community. The
goal is to support the effective delivery of pre-release assessments and services, and to
develop transition plans in collaboration with other justice and community-based
agencies and providers, for supervised and non-supervised non-violent offenders.

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program CFDA #16.606 — This program provides funding
to offset costs incurred for the imprisonment of undocumented criminal aliens who are
convicted of felony offenses. The Department’s participation in the program results in
the identification of undocumented criminal aliens and expedition of the process of
transferring criminal aliens to Federal custody in preparation for deportation. There are
no restrictions on or prescribed use of funds received through this program

U.S. Department of Justice - Pass-through from Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority

1.

Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant CFDA #16.523 - The objectives of this
program are to provide States and units of local government with funds to develop
programs to provide training and technical assistance to develop programs to promote
grealer accountability in the juvenile justice system.




STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO TIHE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 4 - DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS (Continued)

2.

Project Safe Neigltborhoods CFDA #16,609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods is a nationwide
commitment and a comprchensive, strategic approach to reducing gun violence in
America by networking existing local programs that target gun crime and providing
those programs with additional tools.

Byrne Formula Grant Program CFDA #16.579 - The objectives of this program are to
reducc and prevent illegal drug activity, crime and violence, and improve the
functioning of the criminal justice system. Funding for this program results from several
grant confracts with the IIlinois Criminal Justice Information Authority. Projects funded
include the Post Release Substance Abuse Case Management, Young Offender Re-entry,
Community Based Transitional Services for Adult offenders and for Females, Offender
Tracking System upgrade, Transitional and Reentry programs, and training for
professionals treating sex offenders.

Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth in Sentencing Incentive Grants CFDA #16.586 - The
objectives of this program arc lo provide funds for the construction of new facilities and
improvements to existing facilities that result in an increase in the bed capacity for the
confinement of adult and juvenile violent offenders.

Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners (RSAT) CFDA #16.593 - The
objective of this program is to provide funds for substance abuse services for adult and
juvenile offenders. Currently grant-funded residential substance abuse programs are
provided at Lincoln, Dwight, Kankakee MSU, Dixon, Jolict Reception and Classification,
Robinson and Graham for Adults, and at Illinois Youth Centers at St. Charles, Joliet,
Warrenville and Harrisburg,

Crime Victim Assistance CFDA #16.575 - The objective of this program is to provide
services to victims of violence. Under the Victims of Crime Act, the Department has a
grant-funded program that provides a state-wide Victim Services Unit to assist vietims
of crimes committed by convicted offenders.

Violence Against Women Fornula Grants CFDA #16.588 - The objective of this program is
to provide counseling scrvices to female offenders who are victims of violent acts prior
to commitment. A grant-funded program provides these services to female offenders at
Dwight, Kankakee M5U, Metro and Fox Valley Adult Transitional Centers (ATC).
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 4 - DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS (Continued)

U. 5. Department of Justice — Pass through from Department of Human Services

1.

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention -Allocation to States CFDA #16.540 - The
objectives of this program are to increase the capacity of State and local governments to
support the development of more effective education, training, research, prevention,
diversion, treatment, accountability based sanctions, and rehabilitation programs in the
area of juvenile delinquency and programs to improve the juvenile justice system.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families CFDA #93.558 - The objectives of this program are
to assist needy familics with children so that children can be cared for in their own
homes; to reduce dependency by promoting job preparation, work, and marriage; to
reduce and prevent out-of-wedlock pregnancies; and to encourage the formation and
maintenance of two-parent familics,

U.S. Department of Labor - Pass-through from Illinois State Board of Education

1.

Youth Opportunity (YOG) CFDA #17.263 - Offers employment and life skills services to
correctional facilities educational programs to enhance post-release opportunities for
inmates who are on parole. The program is directly linked to networking with outside
agencies and Life Skills Offender Counselors and Cooperative Work Training
Instructors, revising academic curriculum, partnership participation, assisting in Career
Days at correctional facilitics, and providing information and services to enhance life
skills preparation.

Youth Academic Skills CFDA #17.261 - The objectives of this program are 10 address
national employment and training problems. This is accomplished thorough
demonstration and pilot projects, which will include the provision of direct services to
individuals to enhance employment opportunitics and an evaluation component.

U.S. Department of Education

1.

Grants to States for Incarcerated Youth Offenders CFDA #84.331 - Provides direct services to
inmates in adult facilities through Youthful Offender Counselors regarding life skill
preparation and referrals. The goal of this program is to provide transitional services for
inmate students who are age 25 or under with five years or less on their sentence.
Howcver, inmates at all age levels receive assistance. Youthful Offender Counselor
duties include teaching an Education-To-Careers Class, working with Life Skill referrals,
consulting Individual Transition Plans, remedial instruction, and other related duties.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 4 - DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS (Continued)

11.5. Department of Education - Pass-through from lllinois Community College Board

1.

Adult Education - State Grant Program CFDA #84.002 - Provides funding for staff and
activities to encourage, expand, and improve educational opportunities for adults.
Individuals at least 16 years of age who test below college level meet program
guidelines.

U.S. Department of Education - Pass-through from Illinois State Board of Education

1.

Title I Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children CFDA #84.013 - Provides
opportunities for children served to acquire the knowledge and skills contained in the
challenging state content standards and to meet the statc performance standards
developed for all children and young adults (under 21) for special educations services.

Yocational Fducation - Basic Grants to States CFDA #84.048 - Provides funding for eleven
Life Skills Centers. Life Skills Centers provide ransitional services to ex-offenders.

State Grants for Innovative Programs CFDA #84.298 - Support local education reform
efforts, which are consistent with and support statewide reform efforts. Provide a
continuing source of innovation and educational improvement, including support for
library services and instructional and media materials; and meet the special educational
needs of at-risk and high-cost students.

Special Education — State Program Improvement Grants for Children with Disabilities CFDA
#84.323 - Funds staff development opportunities to address critical shortages of special
education teachers with the school district. Through the academy, special education
teachers may add endorsements to this certificate: general education teachers may
complete requircments to become special education teachers.

Special Education — Grants to States CFDA #84.027 - This grant funds programs to provide
appropriate special education and related services to children with disabilities.

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants CFDA #84.367 - The objectives of this program are
to increase student academic achievement through strategies improving teacher quality.

Safe and Drug-Free Schools CFDA #84.186 — The grant is designed to offer a disciplined
environment conducive to learning, by preventing violence in and around schools and
strengthen programs that prevent the illegal use of alcohol, tobacco, and drugs, invelve
parents, and coordinated with related Federal, State, and community efforts and
resources.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

U.5. Department of Health and Human Services - Pass-through from Illinois Department
of Public Aid

1. HIV Prevention Activities — Health Department Based CFDA #93.940 - The objectives of this
program are to assist States and political subdivisions of States in meeting the cost of
establishing and maintaining Human Imimunodeficiency Virus (HIV) prevention programs.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Scrvices - Pass-through from [llinois Departiment of Healthcare
and Family services

1. State Children’s Insurance Program CFDA #93.767 - To initiate and expand child health
assistance to uninsured, low-income children. Assistance is provided primarily by two
methods: (1) obtain health insurance coverage that meets certain requirements in amount,
duration, and scope of benefits; or (2) expand eligibility for children under the State's
Medicaid program.

2. Medical Assistance Program CFDA #93.778 - To provide funding for payments of medical
assistance on behalf of cash assistance recipients, children, pregnant women, and the aged
who meet income and resource requirements, and other categorically-eligible groups.
Financial assistance is provided to pay for Medicare premiums, copayments and deductibles
of qualified Medicare beneficiaries mecting certain income requirements. More limited
financial assistance is available for certain Medicare beneficiaries with higher incomes.
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STATE OF ILLINOES
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCYE EXAMINATION - GUNERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #4258 and Field Services)
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF NET APPROPRIATHONS, EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED RALANCES
YEARS ENDYETY JUNT 30, 2006, 2005, 2004

Fiscal Year

2000 2005 2004
Puablic Acts Pulblic Act 93-681, Tublic Act
94-015 & 94-798 93-842 & 94-015 93-0091
GENERAT REVENUE FUNLY - QO01:
General Office:
Approprialions (nel after transfers) 5 0 48181800 % HLU88735 % 72,920,602
Lxpenclitures:
Porsonal Services 14,934,779 13,437,621 13,830,376
Employee Retirement - Contributions
Paidd by Employoer 10000, K 15,305 A31,947
State Contrilustions g State
Employees' Retiremenl Systom 1,164,814 2,119,120 1,191,478
Stale Contribulions for Soctal Security 113,006 USLO30 1,054,504
Contractuai Services 5,114,565 5,340,114 9,781,224
Travel 242 580 272, 808 276,323
Commenditios 130, 1144 121,801 30459
[rinting 30,551 33,982 38,176
Liyuipment 18,754 pUR u25,104
Llectronic Data Pracessing 1,619,823 7 680,833 8,863,234
Telecommunicalions 1,182,234 2,792,705 2,504, 180
Operation of Aulomaolive Bquipment 202,378 258,111 251,456
Payment of Claims under Workers'
Compensation Act or Qecupaticonal
Diseases Act . 174,520) 12,939 487
Tort Clains 233,777 279719 075,720
Cook Counly Juvenile Detention Conter 7,504,000 750,000 7,500,000
Cook Counly Bool Camp Cenler 1,250,000 1O 000 1,000,000
Sheriff's Fees for Conveying Prisoners 374,900 374,290 K IAVD]
Slate's Share of Assistant State's
Attornwey's Salaries Reimbursenent
to Counlios per 55 11CS5/4 RUEARV 13,905 13,098
Repairs, Mainlenanee and other
Capilal haproverents 1,323,300 A 097 3,376,044
Awards and Grants 2,008,000 625,000 -
LuwpSums © 531,893 N, -
Total Expenditures o 42,488,300 473,057 406 69,115,268
Lapsed Balanves % 1,693,434 5 1,035,329 % 3,805, 30%
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE FXAMINATION - GENERAL QFFICLE
(Including School District #4328 and Field Services)
COMI'ARATIVLE SCHEDULL OF NET APPRODPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED BALANCLS
YEARS ENDELD JUNL 30, 2006, 2005, 2004

TFiscal Year

2000 2005 2004
Public Acts Public Act93-641, Public Act
44-015 & 94-798 93-842 & 94-015 a3-0091
GFNFRAL REVENUE FUNE - 0001 (Continued): -
Schoo] Dstrict #428:
Appropriations {net aller bansfers) b A3,B2LE00 5 26870600 % 12,763,800
Expenditures:
Personal Services 15,048,212 14,2:44, 0% 18,673,716
Student, Moember or Inmate Compensation 19,510 22,513 31,4383
timployee Retirement - Contributions
Paid by Fmployer 141,055 32,639 Boh, 150
State Conlributions to Teachers'
Retirement System 2,627 1,157 4,800
State Contribulions to Stale
Ermployees’ Retirement System 1071438 2,196,510 L 603773
Stule Contributions for Social Security 1,036,157 932175 1198817
Comtractual Services 7047 ki) 5,088,421 S861,517
Iravel 14,215 38,401 42,5930
Comnmoditios 272,792 3k,962 Bt 322
Printing 45,0535 41,0164 64,6733
Haguipmenl . RARES| 1,120,701
Teleconununications 3,400 {3,000 {3, 500
Orporation of Aulomotive Fguipment ‘ 12,140 . 0,131 13,500
Total Expenditures o 23,708,073 200084187 33,046,460
Lapsed Balances b 56,725 % 218350 % 9,717,341
Field Services:
Appropriations (nel alter (ranslers) ‘b_ ___M_E_I,QUU 4 ‘J_E,_H.Z-‘_l_,_.?ﬁ{_ % ] _H:15,L)‘| A0
[ penditures;
Personal Sorvices -, 568,373 40,211,585 LU
Stwdent, Member or Inmate Compensation 91,918 ud, 351 106,010
Employee Retirement Contribulions
Faid Ly Employer 34278 81,6597 1,822,680
State Contribations (o State
Frployees' Retivement Syslem 3643145 0,238,344 AA1928
State Contributions for Social Security 3,489,219 2 000, WR2 2,950, 104
Contractual Servives HLE7,79) 2,401,508 8,829,015
Travel A7, 7N 123,150 202,506
I'ravel and Allowanee 37,740 2701 1,538
Commaoedilics 46,767 426, 156 561,897
Printing [5,0000 15515 16,875
Fauipment (DI ] 3,440 1,000 350
Telecommunivations (076,633 7,020,124 7d449.4,572
Operation ol Antomotive Egnipanent 2,5-[{],(17]_ ERR Y |,"){H,[)‘1Hl
Tutal Expendilures o b5.m57a0 82,288,196 VR, 574,904
l,‘dl‘!}i(‘{.i Balances % 333,400 4% 53('3,(5(1;2 4 o _'7_’_,3.3-}, 131
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STATL COF ILLINQO1S
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
COMPARATIVLE SCHLEDULE OF NET APPROPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURLES AND LAPSLD BALANCES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006, 2005, 2004

Tiscal Year

2006 2005 2004
Public Acts Public Acl 93-681, Tublic Acl
94-0115 & 94-794 Y3-842 & 94-015 93-0041
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
REIMBURSEMENT FUNLY - 0523
Gencral (flice:
Appropriations (net after transtors) $ 600000 % 0033999 4% 85 70 U0
Expenditures:
School Districl Programs 10,153,071 12,378,459 10,318,714
Federal Pragrams 12,223,062 | 2,965 006 1,219,616
Miscelancous Programs 15,270,231 19,362,675 13,6007,126
Awards and Crants - 7,00 -
Tolal Expendilures 37652,067 H5 100, Y 28,115 486
Lapsed Balances % 2217638 0§ 5:L,873.061 % 5765815141

TOTAL APPROPRIATEL TUNLYS

Approprialions {nel after lransloers) $ 230,227,800 S 265071052 S 07.A78,502

Exponditures Lo WEFULSH _2BM0AT | Z2RSTIS

Lapsed Balances : S 5713105 S TRAYLALY

ATOINTLD STATE OFFICERS SALARIES Fiscal Year
2i6 2005 2004

Appropriations B 244,640 G 344,600 S AL 600
Lxpemditures:

For the Director 127,773 1 27,6000 127 i)

For two Assistant Directors oL mezle 108500 R AL

Tolal Expenditures for State OfTicers Salaries $ 237,180 + 236,100 % 104,933

Note; The Department's Direvtor il twe Assistannb Director's salaries are appropriated to, and paid by the Slate
Caomptrolier's Office,

Approprialions, expenditures and Llapsed Balanees woere taken from Complroller records and have been reconciled 1o those of
the Department.
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STATE QF ILLINOTS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNT 30, 2005
SCHEDULL OF EFFICIENCY INITIATIVE PAYMENTS

Amount
Procurement Efficiency Initiative
Gieneral Revenue Fund - 001
Contractual Servives % 1,213,300
Travel 20,000
Commoedilies 913,500
Lquipment 135,000
Operation of Automotive e 25,000
Sub-Total 2,326,800
[nformation Technology Initiatives
General Revenue Fund - 001
Centractual Services [,991,700)
Telecommunications 415,000
Sulb-Total . 2,406,700
Grand Total & ~ 4733,500
Nole: This schedule includes enly those payments made pursuant to PAY3-0025

Amounts were oblained (rom the Agency and reconciled to information from

the Qffice of the Comptraller.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School Listrict #428 and Field Services)
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND RECONCILIATION OF
DEPARTMENT RECEIPTS TO DEPOSITS RECORDED BY THE COMPTROLLER
GENERAL REVENUE FUNLY - 0001
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006, 2003, 2004

2006 2005 2004
CASH RECEITTS PTR
DEPARTMENT RECORDS
Genoral O ice - Miscellaneous % 42747 % 47 467 % 58,971
Scheol Distrivt - Miscellaneous 57 408 38,125
Adult and Juvenile Facilities - Miscellancous [48,220) 191,770 220,838
lield Services (including, Adult Transition
Cenlers) - Miscellaneous R L i 2,980 o 1a5n8d
TOTAL RECEIPTS PER
DEPARTMENT RECORIDS 195,417 242,625 330,522
Deposits in transit, beginning of period - - -
Deposits in transit, cnd of period S - _ o - -
TOTAL DEPOSITS RECORDED BY
THECOMPTROLLER $ 195,417 4 242,625 % 330,522




STATE OF TLLINOTS

DEPARTMUENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAIL QFFICKE
{Including School District #428 and Field Services)

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND RECONCILIATION OF
DEPARTMENT RECEIPTS TQ DEPQSITS RECORDED BY THE COMPTROLLER

CORRECTIONS REIMBURSEMENT FUND - 0523
YEARS ENDED JUNIE 30, 2006, 2005, 2004

CASH RECTIPTS PER
DEPARTMENT RECORDS

Ceneral Office

School District

Adull Facilitios
TOTAL RECEIPTS PER
DEPARTMENT RECORLYS

Deposits in transit, beginning of period
Deposits in lransit, end of period

TOTAL DEPOSITS RECORDID BY
THE COMPTROLLER

2006 2005 2004
$ 4,751,244 $ 26,489,208 $ 18,709,060
8,624,548 9,477 861) 10,680,486

- - 2,262,847

43,375,792 37,967,068 31,652,393

% 43,375,792 $ 37,967,068 $ 31,652,393

Revenue Suuree Codes are not lacility specific, these vodes are used by the entire Department.

Totals for Fund 523 are reconciled by individeal SAMS codes and 1o the entire Department total.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEFPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS IN EXPENDITURES

The operating expenditures for divisions within the scope of the compliance examination
{General Office, School District #428 and Field Services) are financed by appropriations from
the General Revenue Fund. The Department also receives appropriations from the Department
of Corrections Reimbursement Fund for various School District #428 programs, federal
programs and miscellaneous programs. The, “Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and
Lapsed Balances”, presents transactions by appropriate line item for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. The “Comparative Schedule of Net Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed
Balances” compares expenditures by line item for the divisions covered by the compliance
examination.

The Department’s explanation for significant fluctuations in expenditures is detailed below. For
the purpose of our comparison, a fluctuation equal to or greater than 20% was considered
significant,

GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - Variations from FY 2005 to FY 2006

Gengeral Office:  Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures
increased $85,175 or 557% in fiscal year 2006 due to a decrease in fiscal year 2005 as a result of
the State suspending payments into the Statement Employee’s Retirement System as a result of
Public Act 93-0665 which took effect in fiscal year 2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions to State Emplovees” Relirement expendilures decreased $954,312 or 45% in
fiscal year 2006 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 16.1% in fiscal vear 2005 to
7.8% in fiscal year 2006.

Contractual Services expenditures increased $2,579,751 or 47% in fiscal year 2006 due to the
increased cost of utilities, payment for legal services per court orders and other contractually
based rate increases.

Equipment expenditures decrcased $11,131, or 37% in fiscal year 2006 due to the limited
purchases of replacement vehicles.

Electronic Data Processing expenditures decreased $3,061,010 or 40% in fiscal year 2006 due to
the payments made per funding availability and transfers made from available appropriations
to other expenditure object codes within the Department.

Telecommunications expenditures decreased $1,610,471 or 58% in fiscal year 2006 due to the
payments made per funding availability and transfers made from available appropriations to
other expenditure object codes within the Department.

{Continucd)
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STATE QF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAI OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS IN EXPENDITURES

GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - Variations from FY 2005 to FY 2006 (Continued)

Payment of Claims under Workers” Compensation Act decreased $174,520 or 100% in fiscal year
2006 due to the consolidation of the workers’ compensation function under the Department of
Central Management Services.

Repair and Maintenance Projects expenditures increased $923,303, or 231% in fiscal year 2006.
Expenditures for repair and maintenance projects vary from year to year and arc based upon
the needs of the Department due to the aging infrastructure.

Awards and Grants increased $2,375,000 or 380% in fiscal year 2006 as a result of specific
appropriation language to award grants for the Operation Ceasefire Program.

Lump Sums increased $551,893 or 100% in fiscal year 2006 as a result of specific appropriation
language to fund the Halfway Back Program, chaplain services and expenses to hire front line
staff.

School District #428: Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures
increased $158,416 or 485% in fiscal year 2006 due to the decrease in fiscal year 2005 as a result
of the State suspending payments into the Statement Employee’s Retirement System as a result
of Public Act 93-0665 which took effect in fiscal year 2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions to State Employees’ Retirement expenditures decreased 51,025,072 or 47% in
fiscal year 2006 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 16.1% in fiscal year 2005 to
7.8% in fiscal year 2006.

Travel expenditures decreased $24,186 or 63% in fiscal year 2006 due to a Department wide
initiative to reduce expenditures and use innovative ways to achieve the same or higher job
performance. Meetings were conducted via telephone conferences, email and video
conferencing. Additionally, training was limited to critically necessary and other avenues, such
as video conferencing, were utilized.

Equipment expenditures decrcased $33,454 or 100% in fiscal year 2006 due to not purchasing
equipment ilems.

Field Services: Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures increased
$458,581 or 561% in fiscal year 2006 due to the decrease in fiscal year 2005 as a result of the State
suspending payments into the Statement Employee’s Retirement System as a result of Public
Act 93-0665 which took effect in fiscal year 2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

(Continued)
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GENERAL REVENUE FUND ~ 0001 - Variations from FY 2005 to FY 2006 (Continued)

State Contributions to State Employees’ Retirement expenditures decreased $2,615,204 or 42% in
fiscal year 2006 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 16.1% in fiscal year 2005 to
7.8% 1in fiscal year 2006.

Travel expenditures increased $184,587 or 150% in fiscal year 2006 due to an increase i the
number of parole agents performing duties as required per the Department’s initiatives.

Travel and Allowance expenditures increased $35,089 or 1299% in fiscal year 2006. The increase
is due to the Department’s assumption of the responsibility for transportation of inmates out of
state.

Equipment expenditures increased $267,988 or 73% in fiscal year 2006 due to the timing of
equipment purchases for the parole initiatives.

(Continued)
116.



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION ~ GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS IN EXPENDITURES

The operating expenditures for divisions within the scope of the compliance examination
(General Office, School District #428, and Field Services) are financed by appropriations from
the General Revenue Fund. The Department also receives appropriations from the Department
of Corrections Reimbursement Fund for various School District #428 programs, federal
programs and miscellancous programs. The “Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and
Lapsed Balances”, presents transactions by appropriate line item for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2005. The “Comparative Schedule of Net Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed
Balances” compares expenditures by linc item for the divisions covered by the compliance
examination.

The Department’s explanation for significant fluctuations in expenditures is detailed below. Tor
the purpose of our comparison, a fluctuation equal to or greater than 20% was considered

significant.
GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - VARIATIONS FROM FY 2004 TO FY 2005

General Office: Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures
decreased $316,642 or 95% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of the State suspending payments into
the Statement Employee’s Retirement System as a result of Public Act 93-0665 which took etfect
in fiscal year 2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions to State Employees’ Retirement expenditures increased $927,648 or 78% in
fiscal year 2005 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 13.4% in fiscal year 2004 to
16.1% in fiscal year 2005.

Contractual Services expenditures decreased $4,241,110 or 43% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of
the decrease from fiscal year 2004 expenditures for legal services and other related contractually
required payments.

Commodities expenditures decreased $185,238 or 60% in fiscal ycar 2005 due to imtiatives to
reduce expenditures based upon a standard base level of need.

Equipment expenditures decreased $895,219 or 97% in fiscal year 2005 due to limited purchases
of replacement vehicles.

Telecommunications expenditures decreased $771,475 or 22% in fiscal year 2005 due to the
payments made per funding availability and the Department’s priorities.

Payment of Claims under Workers’ Compensation Act decreased $12,764,967 or 99% in fiscal
year 2005 duc to the consolidation of the workers’ compensation function under the
Department of Management Services.

(Continued)
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GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - VARIATIONS FROM FY 2004 TO FY 2005 (Continued)

Tort Claims expenditures decreased $2,896,001 or 91% in fiscal year 2005. These expenditures
vary from year to year due to the timing of court ordered settlements and various property

damages.

Repair and Maintenance Projects expenditures decreased $2,976,047 or 88% in fiscal year 2005.
Expenditures for repair and maintenance projects vary from year to year and are based upon
the needs of the Department due to the aging infrastructure.

Awards and Grants increased $625,000 or 100% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of specific
appropriation language to award grants for the Operation Ceasefire Program and Ashanti
Community Center.

School District #428: Student, Member or Inmate Compensation expenditures decreased $8,920
or 28% in fiscal year 2005 duc to the Department-wide freeze on inmate pay increases.

Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures decreased $822,511 or
96% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of the State suspending payments into the Statement
Employee’s Retirement System as a result of Public Act 93-0665 which took effect in fiscal year
2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions to State Employees” Retirement expenditures increased $592,735 or 37% in
fiscal year 2005 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 134% in fiscal year 2004 to
16.1% in fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions for Social Security expenditures decreased $266,642 or 22% in fiscal year
2005 as a result of decreased personal services expenditures.

Commodities expenditures decreased $257,360 or 46% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of initiatives
to reduce expenditures and establish base levels of need.

Printing expenditures decreased $28,017 or 40% in fiscal year 2005 due to the expanded use of
copy duplicators for forms, and increased utilization of on-line forms.

Equipment expenditures decreased $1,087,247 or 97% in fiscal year 2005 due to purchasing only
mandated equipmcnt items.

Operation of Automotive expenditures decreased $3,369 or 25% in fiscal ycar 2005 as a one time
initiative to reduce expenditures for items rclated to automotive.

(Continued)
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GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - VARIATIONS FROM FY 2004 TO FY 2005 (Continued)

Ficld Services: Employee Retirement - Contributions Paid by Employer expenditures decreased
$1,740,983 or 96% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of the State suspending payments into the
Statement Employee’s Retirement System as a result of Public Act 93-0665 which took cffect in
fiscal year 2004 and continued into fiscal year 2005.

State Contributions to State Employees” Retirement expenditures increased $2,808,421 or 81% in
fiscal year 2005 due to the change in the overall State’s rate from 13.4% in fiscal year 2004 to
16.1% in fiscal year 2005.

Travel expenditures decreased $79,816 or 39% in fiscal year 2005 due to Department wide
initiative to reduce expenditures and use innovative ways 1o achicve the same or higher job
performance. Meetings were conducted via telephone conferences, email and video
conferencing.

Travel and Allowance expenditures increased $1,163 or 76% in fiscal year 2005 as a result of the
Department’s assumption of the travel cxpenses for inmates’ transportation from out of State.

Commodities expenditures decreased $135,761 or 24% in fiscal year 2005 due to the planned
cost savings based upon budget constraints.

Equipment expenditures decreased $1,240,914 or 77% in fiscal year 2005 due to the timing of
equipment purchases for the parole initiatives. Based upon needs, the purchase of equipment
was deferred until fiscal year 2004.
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A summary of cash receipts by fund by division is presented in the Comparative Schedule of
Receipts in this report. The following sections discuss the significant fluctuations in cash

receipts for each fund and for General Office, School District #428 and Field Services. For the
purpose of our comparison, a fluctuation greater than or equal to 15% was considered

significant.
GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 - VARIATIONS FOR FY 2005 AND FY 2006

General Office: Miscellaneous cash receipts decreased $11,504, or 20% in fiscal year 2005 mainly
due to a higher occurrence of one-time reimbursements in the prior year. In fiscal year 2006, the
receipts decreased $4,720 or 10% from fiscal ycar 2005, a further adjustment for regular
reoccurring receipts.

School District: - Miscellaneous cash receipts decreased $37,717, or 99% in fiscal year 2005 and
decreased $351, or 86% in fiscal year 2006. The decrease was due to one-time refund in fiscal
year 2004,

Adult and Juvenile Facilitics: Miscellaneous cash receipts decreased $29,068 or 13% in fiscal
year 2005 and reccipts decrcased $43,550, or 23% in fiscal year 2006 due to the timing of receipts
and the decrease in refunds received..

Field Services (including Adult Transition Centers, and Field Services): Miscellaneous cash

receipts decreased $9,608, or 76% in fiscal year 2005, and increasced 51,413, or 47% in fiscal year
2006 mainly due to the timing of receipts.

CORRECTIONS REIMBURSEMENT FUND - 0523 - VARIATIONS FOR FY 2005
AND FY 2006

The Corrections Reimbursement Fund receives money from grants, both federal and state,
inmate reimbursements, School District programs, Federal programs and other miscellancous
sources as allowed by statute.

General Office receipts include money from Federal programs and miscellaneous sources.
General Office cash receipts increased $9.8 million, or 52% in fiscal year 2005 and increased an
additional $6.3 million or 22% in fiscal year 2006. The increase was due to funding receipts for
SCAAP and VOI/TIS federal grants.

School District cash receipts decreased $1.2 nullion or 11% in fiscal ycar 2005 and an additional
$853 thousand or 9% in fiscal year 2006. The amounts were due to decreases in grant awards,
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The Department's explanation for significant lapse period expenditures is detailed below, For
the purpose of our comparison, expenditures during the lapse period greater than or equal to
25% of total expenditures were considered significant.

GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001

General Qffice - FY 2006: Equipment expenditures for fiscal year 2006 lapse period were $5,086
(27%). An equipment list is prepared for each appropriation within the Department of
Corrections on a fiscal year basis. This list is presented to the Director for approval in January
and a majority of the equipment funds are released during May and June of each fiscal ycar.
Emergency purchases during the fiscal year are dealt with on a case-by-case basis. The
equipment is purchased prior to June 3(* of each year and received before August 15%, This
results in a majority of the vouchers being approved in the lapse period.

Tort Claims expenditures for fiscal ycar 2006 lapsc period were $103,223 (44%) as a result of the
timing of the claims reccived and processed.

Repairs and Maintenance and Other Capital Improvements expenditures for fiscal year 2006
lapse period were $537,079 (41%). The non-emergency repair and maintenance projects are
scheduled around the weather conditions. Qutdoor projects must be completed when the
weather is suitable - such as March through June. This results in the majority of the repairs and
maintenance projects being paid for during the lapse period.

Awards and Grants expenditures for the fiscal year 2006 lapse period were $1,500,000 (50%) as a
result of the appropriation language in the statute and the related contract terms.

School District - FY 2006: Contractual services expenditures for the fiscal ycar 2006 lapse period
were $2,715,544 (37%) as a result of the timing of the final contractual payments to the college
contractors. The final payment due each fiscal year is based upon a reconciljation of services
provided during the fiscal year. The result is a majority of the payments being approved in the
lapse period.

Commodities expenditures for the fiscal year 2006 lapse period were $83,468 (31%) as a result of
the programmatic needs of the individual programs. The result is a majority of the payments
being approved in the lapse period.

(Continued)
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Printing expenditures for the fiscal year 2006 lapse period were $14,325 (32%) as a result of the
programmatic needs of the individual programs. The result is a majority of the payments being
approved in the lapse period.

GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001

General Office - FY 2005: Tort Claims expenditures for fiscal year 2005 lapse period were
$145,599 (52%) as a result of the timing of claims received and processed.

Repair and Mainicnance expenditures for the fiscal year 2005 lapse period were $149,221 (37%).
The non-emergency repair and maintenance projects are scheduled around the weather
conditions. Qutdoor projects must be completed when the weather is suitable - such as March
through June, This results in the majority of the repair and maintenance projects being paid for
during the lapse period.

School District - FY 2005: Contractual services expenditures for the fiscal year 2005 lapse period
were $2,564,617 (32%) as a result of the timing of the final contractual payments to the college
contractors. The final payment due each fiscal year is based upon a reconciliation of services
provided during the fiscal year. The result is a majority of the payments being approved in the
lapse period.

Travel expenditures for the fiscal year 2005 lapse period were $23,130 (60%) as a result of the
timing of the final submission of travel vouchers for the division.

Equipment expenditures for the fiscal year 2005 lapsc period were 58,889 (27%). An equipment
list is prepared for each appropriation within the Department of Corrections on a fiscal year
basis. This list is presented to the Director for approval in January and a majority of the
equipment funds are released during May and June of each fiscal year. Emergency purchases
during the fiscal year are dealt with on a case-by-case basis. The equipment is purchased prior
to June 30t of cach year and reccived before August 15%. This results in a majority of the
vouchers being approved in the lapse period.

(Continued)
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ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable for the Department consist primarily of receivables from Federal and State
grant reimbursements and formula payments due from grantor agencies. The principal grantor
agencies are other State agencies, therefore the Department’s receivables are all considered fully
collectible.

STATE HOUSING BENEFITS

The Department houses employees on the grounds of many of its correctional facilities in guard
dormitories or warden's houses. Currently there are approximately 203 employees living in
dormitory rooms and approximately 41 employees living in houses. The Department has
established rales for the housing dependent upon costs for utilities and the appraised value of
the properly. While the Department initially pays for the utilities and maintenance, the
employees pay a monthly fee that includes utility charges. Additionally, in accordance with
Internal Revenue Regulations, the appraised value of the property is added to the employees’
compensation as a taxable fringe benefit. The policies for housing are documented in the
Department’s Administrative Directives. The Department does not provide housing to non-
employees and does not require employees to pay securily deposits.

PUBLICATIONS

The Department of Corrections published the following Reports:
Affirmative Action Plan
Quarterly Report to the Legislature

Special Needs Study (2005)
llinois Correctional Industries Annual Report
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AGENCY FUNCTIONS

The Department of Corrections is administered from the offices located at the Concordia
Complex, 1301 Concordia Court, P.O. Box 19277, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9277.

The Illinois Department of Corrections” mission is to protect the public from criminal offenders
through a system of incarceration and supervision which securely segregates offenders from
society, assures offenders of their constitutional rights, and maintains programs to enhance the
success of the offender’s reentry into society.

The function of the General Office is to provide support scrvices to all of the Department’s
facilities and divisions. This includes establishing and monitoring budget activities, capital
planning, accounting services and data processing. The General Office performs other
functions necessary to meet the provisions of the Unified Code of Corrections (Code).

The function of the School District #428 is to provide academic and vocational training
programs in the adult and juvenile Correctional institutions and other functions necessary to
meet the provisions of the Unified Code of Corrections (Code). The mission of the School
District is to enhance the quality and scope of education for inmates and wards within the
Department of Corrections so that they will be better motivated and better equipped to restore
themselves to constructive law-abiding lives in the community.

The function of the Adult Transition Centers is to provide basic needs, custody, and program
opportunities for adults sentenced by the Illinois courts. The centers provide academic and
vocational programs, work experience, and participation in public service projects for residents
who are making the transition from prison to free society.

PLANNING PROGRAMS
The Department had five major programs:

Bureau of Operations

Adull Institutions/ Adult Transition Centers
Parole

Juvenile Institutions

Women and Family Scrvices

O w N
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PLANNING PROGRAMS (Continued)

The Department establishes, reviews and updatcs department goals on a regular basis.
Department goals are developed through continuing sources of information derived through
operations, changes in legislation, census statistics, innovations in programs, inmate population
makeup, and availability of resources. Senior management of the various divisions, including
Adult, Juvenile, Field Services and Administrative Services, consolidate the information. The
Planming and Research Unit assists to formalize statements and plans, which detail the goals of
the Department.

The School District submits annual vocational and special education plans to the State Board of
Education. Long Range planning goals are submitted to the Program Services Unit as well as
the School Board. Shorl Range goals are determined at weekly management meetings and
relayed during Education Facility meetings. Annual in-services plans are also developed.

When new programs, policies, and procedures are developed, they are formalized through the
development of the Department’s Administrative Rules and Directives, These rules and
directives are subject to continual audits by internal audit and institution audit staff, Tor the
School District, district teams have been established whose responsibilities include program
audits and reviews. An Annual review of programs is also reported at the end of each fiscal

year.

Effective June 1, 2006, Public Act 94-0696 cstablished the Department of Juvenile Justice. This
Act transferred certain rights, powers, dutics, and functions that were exercised by the Juvenile
Division of the Department of Corrections. Effective July 1, 2006 the Department of
Correction’s school district was transferred to the Department of Juvenile Justice. For the ease
of reporting and accounting, information related to the Department of Juvenile Justice is
included within this report.
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Average number of employees by division are presented as follows on a theee-year comparative basis:

2006 2005 2004
Coeneral Office 261 265 257
School Distrivl #428 274 275 350
Ficld Services 9% _——. 74 733

Total . [,329 ‘ 1,314 1,349



STATE OF ILLINOIS
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ANALYSI5 OF EMPLOYEE OVERTIME
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(Unaudited)

Certain employecs arc eligible for overtime if the hours worked during a day exceed the
employees standard work hours. Correctional Officers receive a Ya-hour of overtime for each
day they stand for roll call. The roll call overtime is paid at straight time for all but Corrcectional
Lieutenants who receive 1 Y2 times normal pay.

Overtime is to be distributed as equally as possible among employees who normally perform
the work in the position in which the overtime is needed. An employee’s supervisor must
approve any overtime. In most cases, except for roll call, employees are compensated at 1 2
times their normal hourly rate for overtime hours worked. Employees have the opportunity to
be compensated either in pay for the overtime or receive compensatory timne off.

The following tables, prepared from Department records presents the paid overtime and used
compensatory time incurred during fiscal years 2006 and 2005.
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Year Fnded June 30, 2006

Livision
CGieneral (ffice
Schonl Dislrict
Freld Services
Juvenile
IYC-Chicago
IYC-Harrisburyg,
[YC-Joliet
IYC-Kowanee
IYC-Murphysbaro
1YC-P Marquette
IYC-5t Charles
IYC-Warrenviile
Bty Muddy
Centralia
Danville
Decatur
Dixon
Nwight
liast Moline
Craham
Hill
illinois River
Jacksonville
Lawrence
Linceln
Logan
Menard
Pinkneyville
Pootiac
Rohinson
Shawiee
Sheridan
Saouthesicrn
Slaleville
Tamms
Taylorville
Vandalia
Vienna
Wostlern
Correctional hnduost

TCOTAL

$ Value of S Value of Tatal
QOverlime Chvaetime Compensatory  Compensatory Overtime &
Tours Flours Ilours Flours Compensalory

[*aid Paid Used Used Hours
2,974 % 113,096 1,997 % 57,399 1,971
71 2249 54 1,740 175
18,874 754,347 0,455 267,745 28,820
18,162 1,733,965 42 648 1,014,686 aL&10
2,771 100,702 3,092 72,877 5,863
3,338 127,799 8,600 211,091 11,4938
7,287 70516 8,136 180,859 15,423
471 17,870 3646 80,623 4,117
1,178 43,962 4,962 126,182 &, 140
3,366 117,738 2,271 62,424 5,657
18,903 655,313 8,745 206,390 27,648
10,848 400,064 3,196 74,240 14,044
14,351 52,728 11,509 244,188 25,950
27,202 991,518 8,457 205,605 35,609
2,547 107,477 8,007 209,634 t0,584
1,753 74,207 5,225 135,846 978
0,191 254,005 17,071 430,645 26,262
73,712 2,616,104 15,027 368,287 38,730
9,085 379,131 14,77% 374,455 24,763
30,006 726,029 7016 433,522 37,622
5,710 220,304 3,055 224,870 14,665
1,408 52,684 10,819 278,570 12,227
4,909 218,008 14,717 389,362 [9,626
1,405 283,160 23,141 777 24,546
8,051 332,640 5,235 123,582 t4,236
0417 384,246 9,67 1 251,847 19,2688
17,222 663,29 25,367 Ho6,606 42,589
3,686 144,648 15,514 391,973 19,200
12,472 500,469 13,929 359,218 26,4041
5,801 215,710 13,220 331,891 19,021
7,955 318,948 14,172 348,304 22,127
23,754 851,195 11,744 297,427 35,494
555 23,878 7026 179,994 7,581
83,184 3079116 75,605 1,932,631 158,794
2,540 100,745 1,054 251,622 12,594
3,614 144,011 4,304 113,583 7018
3,703 146,953 11,141 292,575 14,544
4,392 173,518 13,449 357,021 17,841
3,227 122,845 15,630 408,980 18,863
7,409 245 866 3,170 88,150 10,574
498,339 618,332,143 492,101 § 12,479,507 990,440

Total § Value

of Overtime &

Compensalory

Hours
% 171,085
3,989
1,022,092
2,748,641
173,579
338,890
451,375
98,493
[70,144
180,162
861,703
474,304
804,916
1,197,123
317,111
210,143
785,200
2,984,391
753,616
1,159,55]
445,174
331,254
607,460
070,927
461,222
630,003
1,331,635
536,621
89,087
547,601
B6O7,3(r2
1,148,622
203,872
5,011,747
352,367
257,594
430,524
03,509
531,831
334,016
$ 30811650
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(UNALTHTED)

Year Fnded June 30, 2005

Division
Croneral Ofice
School District
Field Services
Juvenile
IYC-Chicapo
YC-Harrisburg
IYC-Jaliet
[YC-Kowanee
IYC-Murphyshora
[YC-P Marquette
[YC-SL Charles
IYC-Warrenville
Big Muddy
Centralia
Danville
Decatur
1Yixon
Dwipht
last Moline
Craham
tLill
[llinois River
Jacksonville
Lawrence
Lincoln
Logan
Menard
Pinkneyville
Pontiac
Robinson
Shawnee
Sheridan
southestern
Stateville
Tamms
Taylerville
Vandalia
Vienna
Weslorn
Correclional Indust
TOTAL

S Value of $Value of Total Total 3 Value

Overtime Overtime Compensatery  Compensalory Overtime & of Quertime &
Hours tlours Flours Tours Compensatory  Compensatory
Paid Paid Used Used Ugurs Hours
2,933 $ 102,057 2,545 $ 66,715 5478 % 168,772
5 146 ] 242 12 388
16,932 622,052 10,701 273,201 27,636 896,003
72,632 2,441,155 43,100 969,203 115,732 3,410,358
2,309 £2,024 2,092 46,659 4,461 128,683
4,737 160,993 8,729 190,738 13,446 387,731
6,201 247,009 7.763 166,817 13,961 413,826
a2 21,13%9 3,936 80,629 4,548 101,768
2,147 71,954 5,858 128,186 8,005 210,140
3,433 129,392 1,065 25,829 4,498 153,221
40430 1,310,621 10,218 240,659 H),648 1,551,280
12,704 418,023 3,439 73,680 6,143 491,708
[8,520 644,994 16,272 383,418 M, 792 1,026,412
35,070 1,189,833 v.114 207,221 44,184 1,397,054
3,379 130,333 8,670 218,003 12,049 348,986
1945 78,207 3915 93,777 5,860 171,964
9,081 36,627 16,873 398,603 25,954 745,230
79,549 2,642,550 17,932 409,360 u7, 441 3,051,910
7,894 275451 12,824 308,388 20,718 583,839
33,833 1,179,126 25,943 592,356 2,776 1,771,522
10,452 371,720 9,971 236,326 20,423 608,046
1,294 46,927 8,584 207,100 4,883 254,027
4,315 178,451 13,434 332,492 17,749 510,943
17,23 490,608 9,524 206,880 26,760 097,404
v,292 331,692 5,123 tte374 14,415 448,060
19,351 043,528 13,539 315,607 32,840 1,009,195
22,936 857,450 26,639 646,799 49,575 1,504,244
2,835 100,086 9,152 219,50 11987 319,580
19,590 732,978 14,362 342,153 33,952 1,075,111
6,225 214,788 13,807 324,919 20,032 539,707
10,945 394,433 16,826 389,315 27771 753,748
27,051 901,266 12,896 297,542 39,947 1,198,808
672 25,592 5,803 111,449 (4,525 167,041
133,805 4,566,538 78,398 1,826,546 212,203 0,393,064
2,492 91,962 9,127 215,830 11,619 307,792
9310 324,018 6,020 146,500 15,320 470,518
9,084 287,445 0,907 68,5492 16,051 457,037
4,425 161,923 13,812 341,087 18,237 503,010
16,729 265,955 17,059 417,122 33,788 683,077
8,348 320,511 1,627 42,0401 9,975 362501
690,798 $23452,157 503,720 $ 11,825,752 1,194,518 $ 35277909
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
NOTES TO ANNUAL COST STATISTICS
(Unaudited)

The average daily population of adult institutions (maximum, medium and minimum security)
has increased from 43,036 for fiscal 2005 to 43,800 for fiscal 2006. This represents a 764 (2%)
increase for fiscal 2006. By comparison, the rated capacity of adult institutions at June 30, 2006
was 32,478,

The average yearly cost per resident is summarized as follows for fiscal years 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Adult Institutions $ 20,593 $ 21,636
Juvenile Centers 66,923 70,911
Adult Transition Centers 22,629 21,126

(excludes Crossroads and North Lawndale)

The Departinent also maintains adult work camps and youth impact incarceration camps (“Boot
camps”’) at the following locations:

Work Camps Boot Camps
Clayton Hardin County DuQuoin
East Moline (2) Vandalia Dixon Springs
Kankakee Stateville (Farm)
Springfield Pittsfield

Tamms

Adult Transition Centers: Approximately 1,350 inmates are housed in cight adult transition
centers throughout the state. Inmates who are nearing the conclusion of their sentences and
have made a satisfactory adjustment while confined to a prison may be eligible for participation
in the work release program. Inmates housed in an adult transition center are expected to
become employed or participate in some other worthwhile endeavor such as attending school.
Participation in the work release program is considered a privilege and those inmates who do
not abide by the strict rules and regulations enforced at adult transition centers are transferred
back to prison.

(Continued)
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STATE OT ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATISTICS
SCHOOL DISTRICT #428
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 and 2005

(Unaudited)
20060 2005
Amount W Amount va
Year end inmate enrollment:
Adult 10,763 G % 9,260 59%
Juvenile I N v 0% 1,122 1%
_ 11,934 100% 10,382 100%
Total Enrollment lor the year:
Adul 25,445 88% 27,028 B7%
Juvenile _ 3,317 12% _ 34860 13%
28,7(12 mou \!(],"’88 Lm(}u
Cost per enrellee borne by:
Ceneral Revencu Fund - 0001 #90 72% 860 224%
Reitmbursement Fund - 0523 D o 28% . 3,126 78%
1,249 100% 3,986 100%
GED Certifiviates Tssued
Adult [,603 Q0% [,228 Q1'%
Juvenile 185 10% 121 Y%
1,788 100% 1,359 100%
Advanced [Megrees Issued
Adult 230 {00% 258 100 %
Juvenile e 0% e e 0%
- _____2_3_(_). [00% @ b
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
{(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
PARTICIPATING EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS - SCHOOL DISTRICT #428
(Unaudited)

The District provides post-sccondary acadermic and vocational training programs to enrolled
inmates at educational facilities through contractual agreements with the following colleges and
universities:

Educational Institution Educational Facilities Served
Car] Sandburg College Hill CC
[linois Central College East Moline CC

lineis River CC
Peoria Adult Transition Center

Illinois Valley Community College Sheridan CC
Kaskaskia College Centralia CC

Lake Land College Danville CC
Graham CC
Taylorville CC
Vandalia CC
Southwestern IL CC
Dixon CC
Dwight CC
Western [L CC (begin 10/01/05)

Lincoln Trail College Robinson CC
Lawrence CC

MacMurray College Jacksonville CC (7/1/05 - 9/30/05)
Woestern lllinois CC (7/1/05 - 9/30/05)

Rend Lake College Big Muddy River CC
Pinckneyville CC

(Continued)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
PARTICIPATING EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS - SCHOOL DISTRICT #428

(Unaudited)
Educational Inshtution Educational Facilities Served
Southeastern Illinois College Shawnee CC
Vienna CC

I'YC-Harrisburg

Richland College Decatur CC
Jacksonville CC (began 10/1/05)
Lincoln CC (began 10/1/05)
Logan CC (began 10/1/05)
Pittsfield Work Camp (began 10/1/05)
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COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OTTICE

STATEQFTLLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
EMERGENCY PURCLIASES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

06

8:5)
6

{6

[8]]

06
06
()&

(36

DATE OF
AFFIDAVIT
771705
7/7/05
7719705
9720705
[1/1/05
12/1/05

12/1/05

1/23/06
3721706

3/722/06

3/22/06
4711706
5/9/06

5/16/06
5/18/06
5/31706

6/23%/06

6/29/06

LOCATION
YVienna CC
East Moline CC
Cieneral (Mfice
Graham (C
Vienna CC
Shawnee CC

Vienna CC

Finckneyville OC
Shawnee CU
Western
Clorrectional
Industrics

Stateville CC
Shawnee CC
Vienna CC
[l Correctional
Inctustries
IYC -
Murphysboro
Robinson CC
Fast Moline CC
I, Correctional
Industries

DESCRIPTION OF
EMERGENCY PURCHASE

Electrical line repairs
Asbestos removal and disposal
Medical Services
Sewage removal pump replacement
Asboestos removal and disposal
Electrical transformer replacement

Flectrical transformer replacement

Replacement of steel tank for propoer grease disposal

Outer perimeter fence replacement

Catfish nugget purchase due to debris-filled pollock
blocks

Elevator replacement due to issues with compliance
Observation Wwuch sereen replacement

Exhaust fan replacement

No master contractin place for the purchase of
catfish nuggets

Heat exchanger replacement

Water heater replacemoent

Electrical trans{ormer replacement

Cornsyrup purchase due Lo slatewide delivery
stoppapes made by curtent vendor al thal time

LSTIMATED

COST

% AL0I5.00

50,000.00

55,000,000.00

60,000.00

113,000.00

122,000.00

38.,000.00

3313333
97, 200.00

1192,400.00

500,000.00
26,000.00

20,600.00
294,000.00
31,175.00
49,633.50

S0,000.00

4705209

$  56,688,208.92

%

ACTUAL
COST

31,015.00
6%,551.00
44,411,42333
51,56(.00
58,923.75
104,538.76

32,194.00

3313333
42.261.00

L19,400.00

Linkroow
12(0,454.00

Unknoown
294,000.00
31, 17500

49,585.50

knewon

47,025.09
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAI. OFFICE

{Including School District #428 and Field Services)
EMLERGENCY PURCHASES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

5

- I
K S I |

=
LU TR

=
(8]

= =
won

03

5

DATE OF
AFFIDAVIT

10/ 15/04
[2/03/04
12/6/04

01/14/05
01/14/05
2/17 105

02/25/05
03,/ 08/05
03/09/05

D4/07/05

05,/05/05
06/21/05

LOCATION

Vandalia CC
Shawnee CC
Ponliae CC
[, Correctional
Industrics
I River CC
Vienna CC

Dwight CC
. Correctional
Industrics
last Moline CC
Dwight CC
Big Muddy River
CC

Shawnee (0O

DESCRIPTION OF
EMERGENCY PURCHAST:

uc e possible closure then remaining, open, Vandalia
had Lo purchase feod off the Tocal market
Refrigeration system replacement

Waler main repairs

Beel rounds master contracl net awarded in ime
Cenerator engine replacemoent

Coal purchase to keep bailers operational

Roof, drywall, electrical, water and smoke damage duce lo
fire

Beoel trim master contract nol awarded in lime
Afdr condittoning, chiller replacement

Boiler replacement

Waler leak repatr
Atr conditioning chiller replacement

ESTIMATED
COST

$ 87,120,106

75,900.00
45,000.00

243,180.00
30,0000
63,000.00
40,000.05)
45,760.00
25,000.00

50,000,050

50,000.00

71,000.00

$ 82596516

ACTUAL
COS5T

87,120.16
78,700.00
13,368.00

299,533 85
29,684,17
126,248.22
£2,400,00
45,765.00
17,500.00

193,600.00

28,580.00
70,582.00
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
{Unaudited)

For fiscal year 2005 the Department of Corrections - General Office was appropriated $600,000
from the General Revenue Fund and $750,000 from the Department of Corrections -
Reimbursement Fund for a grant to Operation CeaseFire. In addition, for fiscal year 2006 the
Department of Corrections - General Office was appropriated $3,000,000 from the General
Revenue Fund for a grant to Operation CeaseFire. CeaseFire is a community-based program to
stop violence through street-level outreach, public education and community involvement. The
CeaseFire program is administered through the Chicago Project for Viclence Prevention
(Chicago Project), which is a public-private organization committed to the prevention of
violence, The Chicago Project is housed within the School of Public Health of the University of
Illinois at Chicago.

The Department of Corrections entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Board
of Trustees of the University of Illinois at Chicago. The Memorandum of Understanding is a
formal expression of the purpose, intent and responsibilitics of the parties and is signed by
offictals from both entities.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
IYC ~RUSHVILLE AND THOMSON

During the engagement period the Department had not moved any inmates into [YC -
Rushville or Thomson centers, therefore they were not examined separately. Funds were not
specifically appropriated for either fiscal year 2005 or 2006 to fund the operation of either
Center.

Since the completion of the centers the Department has incurred expenditures related to
personnel, contractual agreements and telecommunications to ensure the buildings were being
properly maintained and secured. Since the buildings were not opened and the warrantics
have expired the buildings and internal systems required limited maintenance.

The Department received an appropriation of $362,700 for fiscal ycar 2005 and 2006 for a grant
to the City of Thomson for the reimbursement of costs incurred in relation to the construction of
the Thomson Correctional Center. In fiscal year 2006 the Department received a lump sum
appropriation of $1,200,000 to be used for costs and expenses rclated to the opening of the
Thomson Correctional Center's Minimum Security Unit. The Thomson Correctional Center’s
Minimum Security Unit began receiving inmates in August of 2006.

Effective July 1, 2006 the Department of Human Services began utilizing IYC - Rushville for
their Treatment and Detention Facility.

Expenditures related to maintaining both Centers for fiscal year 2005 and 2006 are noted in the
following table:

Thomson | Thomson | IYC-Rushville | I'YC-Rushville
FY06 FY05 EY06 FY05
1120 Personal Services $ 808 $ 890 $ 80.9 $ 63.7
1129 Retirement Pickup 2.2 4.9 2.2 3.5
1140 SMIC 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1161 Retirement 6.3 146 | 6.3 10.6
1170 Social Security 6.1 6.6 6.2 4.8
1200 Contractual 313.1 441.8 247.0 318.1
1290 Travel 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1300 Commodities Y 0.2 0.0 |
1302 Printing 0.0 ) 0.0 0.0 0.0
1500 Equipment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1700 Telecom 5.6 3.4 24 2.6
| 1800 OAE 0.8 1.5 - 0.0 0.0
1900 Lump Sum 1,411.5 362.7 0.0 0.0
6900 R&M Lump Sum 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
TOTALS $1,826.5 $ 9299 $ 3452 $ 4033
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STATE OF ILLINQIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL QFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
HURRICANES KATRINA AND RITA COST REPORTING

(Unaudited})
Services Provided:
Employees:
Payroll and overtime costs 5 47,219
Amounts paid directly by IEMA:
Payroll % 1,469
Cormmunodities 78,817

Total
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL OFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
SERVICE EFFORTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS
(Unaudited)

FISCAL YEARS 2005 AND 2006

The Illinois Department of Corrections’ mission is to protect the public from criminal offenders
through a system of incarceration and supervision which securely segregates offenders from
society, assures offenders of their constitutional rights, and maintains programs to enhance the
success of the offender’s reentry into society.

The Depariment accomplishes their mission by meeting more specific goals:
* Implement policies and strategies to enhance workplace safety for State employees.

+ (Continue to address and meet the constitutional and statutory mandates governing the
custody of convicted felons,

* Modify public policy to expand the range of sanctions available to manage convicted
felons consistent with public policy and practical fiscal considerations.

e Establish programs which will give offenders the opportunity for rehabilitation and the
development of law-abiding lifestyles.

Safety is at the forefront of the agency's operations. The department's emphasis is placed on
front line staff to protect and control inmates. A number of initiatives designed to cnsure the
safety of employees and inmates have yielded significant results. Among those arc control and
order. Security level designations, controlled line movement, inmate property boxes and the
increased monitoring of sccurity threat groups have created a more secure prison system.

New programs include those that will address the issues of inmates returning to the
community. Operation Spotlight addresses public safety through the expansion of IDOC's
Parole Program. The program is an initiative of Gov. Blaggjevich that increases parole agent
staffing to monitor and Hghten parole supervision on the streets of Illinois. Increased agents will
help improve supervision and monitoring of parolees as well as allow the department to better
target higher risk populations, An added focus on community reentry includes emphasis on
accountability and job placement with the goal of ultimately reducing crime and recidivism.

The agency’s parole efforts also support the Governor’s Sheridan National Drug Prison and
Reentry Program. Nearly 69 percent of the state prison population is incarcerated for a drug-
involved crime. In recognizing that drugs are a leading cause of recidivism, the Governor
opened the Sheridan National Drug Prison and Reentry Program in January 2004. Today,
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION - GENERAL QFFICE
(Including School District #428 and Field Services)
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
SERVICE EFFORTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS
(Unaudited)

FISCAL YEARS 2005 AND 2006 (Continued)

Sheridan is moving drug-involved offenders through an intensive drug treatment, cognitive
skills development, vocational and job preparation program. The program begins in the prison
setting and follows through reentry and back into communities under an extensive case
management program with heightened supervision. The Sheridan program has been showing
promise by maintaining a 50 percent lower reincarceration rate than average. Also, a larger
percentage of Sheridan program participants are becoming employed more regularly and
quickly, compared to other parolees.

The Governor's Meth prison initiative includes creating two Meth units, one at Southwestern
Illinois Correctional Center in Fiscal Year 2007 and one at Sheridan Correctional Center the
following fiscal year. This year, the Governor will create a 200-bed Meth Unit at the 667-bed
Southwestern facility in East St. Louis. The facility there will become a fully dedicated drug
prison and reentry program in the model of Sheridan prison program.

In Fiscal Year 2008, the Governor will expand Sheridan from 930 offenders to its full capacity of
1,300 offenders. Two-hundred (200) of those spaces will be used for a Meth Unit. As with the
current Sheridan model, inmates in both programs will access intensive prison-based drug
treatment programs, vocational training, job preparation and mental health services.

The recidivism rate for IDOC is 51.8 percent, down from 54.6 percent from Fiscal Year 2004,
Today, inmates and parolees arc now given more opportunities for successful reentry into
society than ever before,
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